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USA USA Total

Number 
of Plants: 46 5o 96

Number of
Distribution 
Centers: 257 275 532

Percentage 
of PBG
Volume: 62 38 1oo

We have absolute clarity 

around what we do:

We Sell Soda.

We commit ourselves to 

these operating principles:

Rules of the Road

1. Drive Local Market Success.

2. Act Now. Do It Today. Get Results.

3. Set Targets. Keep Score. Win.

4. Respect Each Other.

Our success will ensure:

Customers Build Their Business.

Employees Build Their Futures.

Shareholders Build Their Wealth.
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Our Mission

Front Cover:
Our cover image represents 
a possibility achieved with 
just the right combination 
of creativity, coordination, 
timing, logistics, teamwork 
and technology.

Bringing the most robust – 
and ever-growing – lineup 
of soft drinks to an enormous 
customer base every day 
requires the same kind of 
capability. The result is not 
an illusion – it’s a healthy,
profitable business.

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. 
is the world’s largest manufacturer, 
seller and distributor of carbonated
and non-carbonated Pepsi-Cola 
beverages.

For reconciliations of EBITDA
and constant territory net 
revenue per case to operating
income and reported net 
revenue per case, respectively,
see pages 25 – 26. 

For reconciliation of adjusted
EPS to reported EPS - diluted,
see page 43.
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(1)$ in millions, except per share data 2002 2001 2000

Net Revenues $ 9,216 $ 8,443 $ 7,982

Operating Income $ 898 $ 676 $ 590

EBITDA $ 1,349 $ 1,190 $ 1,061

Adjusted EPS (2) $ 1.46 $   1.34 $   1.07

Cash provided by Operations $ 1,014 $   882 $ 779

Financial Highlights
(1) (1) (1)

(1) Fiscal years 2002 and 2001 consisted of 52 weeks, while fiscal year 2000 consisted of 53 weeks.

(2) Fiscal years 2001 and 2000 have been adjusted to reflect SFAS 142. 

Return on Invested Capital (1)(2)

2000 20022001

7.1%

8.3%
7.9%

Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share (1)(2)

2000 20022001

$1.07

$1.46

$1.34

(1) Fiscal years 2002 and 2001 consisted of 52 weeks, while fiscal year 2000 consisted of 53 weeks.

(2) Fiscal years 2001 and 2000 have been adjusted to reflect SFAS 142. 

* The following performance graph compares the cumulative total return of PBG’s common stock to the S&P Stock Index and to an index of peer companies selected 
by the company (“the Bottling Group Index”).

** Bottling Group Index includes Coca-Cola Amatil Limited, Coca-Cola Bottling Co., Coca-Cola Enterprises, Panamerican Beverages, Inc. and PepsiAmericas, Inc.
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Dear Fellow Shareholders, Customers 
and PBG Employees,

S

Constant Territory Net 

Revenue per Case was up

3%, both U.S. and 

worldwide.

Earnings Before Interest,

Taxes, Depreciation and

Amortization were up 

13% for the year, including

acquisitions, which 

contributed about two

points of growth.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

were $1.46 for the year.

Return on Invested 

Capital increased to 8.3%,

well above our 7% cost 

of capital.

Cash Provided by

Operations increased 15% 

to more than a billion 

dollars.

I’m particularly proud of these

results, given some of the

challenges that we faced

toward the end of the year. 

As the economy slowed late 

in 2002, so did consumer 

traffic. Our customers began

to experience retail sales 

shortfalls, which affected our

business as well. And, in the

fourth quarter, unseasonably

cold and wet weather 

dominated much of the

United States, resulting in

weaker cold drink sales.

Our acquisition of Pepsi-

Gemex, completed in

November 2002, opened up

exciting possibilities for 

PBG’s future. Mexico is the

second largest soft drink 

market in the world, after the

United States. This business 

represents two-thirds of the

Pepsi volume sold in Mexico

and produces healthy margins,

with powerful brands in the

categories of colas, flavors and

water – both bottled and jug.

Earlier in the year, we

acquired the Pepsi bottler in

Turkey, which brought with 

it a host of popular local soft

drink brands and access to 

one of the youngest and

fastest-growing populations 

in Europe. 

Growth Through 

Financial Discipline

In addition to outstanding

execution, product and 

package innovation and the

new bottling operations 

we’ve acquired, our ability to

increase our revenues through

mix management and pricing

contributed significantly to

our financial success in 2002.

We maintained our market

share and posted very solid

financial results:

uccess for The Pepsi

Bottling Group is built

on capability and discipline.

Based on marketplace condi-

tions and opportunities, we set

clear objectives, ensure that

everyone understands their

roles in achieving them, and

then go out and get the job

done. Our results paint a 

compelling picture of the

power of this formula for 

success and our people’s desire 

to win. The year 2002 marked

another chapter in the growth

story of PBG.

Growth Through Innovation

Consumers continue to look

for new choices in beverages –

both in flavors and in packag-

ing – and we have a brand

lineup to satisfy every prefer-

ence. In 2002, we announced

our decision to unite the entire

PBG U.S. system behind

Sierra Mist, Pepsi’s refreshing

lemon-lime brand, which out-

performs other national brands

in taste tests. We have already

made huge strides in growing

the awareness and consumption

of this brand in all of our PBG

markets. The launch of Pepsi

Blue had a positive effect on

the Pepsi trademark and on the

cola category as a whole. We

continue to work closely with

our partners at PepsiCo to

identify the next big idea –

something as powerful as

Mountain Dew Code Red, 

now a 50 million case brand in

PBG’s U.S. markets, and Pepsi

Twist, currently 38 million

cases (both measurements 

in 8-ounce servings) in all of

our channels. Across the Pepsi 

system, we are committed 

to innovation and what it

brings to our customers, our 

consumers and our category. 

Growth Through Execution

In the U.S., we once again

showed our strong suit in 

execution – store by store.

Our display inventory 

numbers were at an all-time

high in 2002. For every 100

cases our chief competitor got

on the floor at food stores, we

placed 108. We boosted our

business in the food store

channel by 4% in 2002, and

our in-store execution was a

key factor in that success. 

Growth Through Acquisitions

Growth also came to us in

2002 through a number of

bottling acquisitions. Each is

important, but one, by virtue

of its size and potential for

growth, will be more pivotal

than any other to our success.

•

•

•

•

•



During the first stage of our

company, one leader set us 

on our course for success. 

I’d like to offer our special

thanks and best wishes to 

Craig Weatherup, PBG’s

“founding father,” who spent

almost 30 years in the Pepsi

system before retiring in

January 2003. We thank him

for all he did to lead this 

business in the early days and

to get us off to such a great

start. I am honored to follow

him and uphold his approach

of keeping the mission and

goals of our business simple

and clear, focusing on 

customer satisfaction and

building on our 

results-oriented culture.

All of us at PBG look forward

to a Next Horizon that honors

the past, builds on the present

and brings the future to life…

a future where every possibility,

powered by increasing 

capability, becomes reality. 

John T. Cahill

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer
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We are focused on using all

the advantages we have to

convert these challenges into

opportunities. PBG has the

variety of brands and packages

that consumers love, and we

have the sales and executional

capability to convert 

possibility into profitability 

for our customers and for 

ourselves. The Liquid

Refreshment Beverage 

category continues to be one 

of the fastest-growing grocery

categories, and colas remain

the number one dry goods

product sold in food stores.

Our products have the power

to draw consumers into our

customer locations, and 

that, of course, is what our

customers want and need. 

The beverage category is an

important driver of our 

customers’ businesses – 

both in volume and in profit.

And we want to make sure 

we are contributing more than

our fair share to our customers’

profits – in every market 

and in every store across 

PBG territory. 

Investing in our Future

We are making well-placed

strategic investments – in

capacity, infrastructure, 

designed to provide the right

skills for world-class selling.

Our sales force began taking

advantage of the power in our

Next Generation Handheld

computer, which is revolution-

izing today’s sales calls with

customized selling information

and other data important in

selling proposals and buying

decisions. We’re also focusing

on service improvements – not

just at the customer location,

but all the way through the

supply chain, ensuring that 

the right products are in our 

warehouses, that our trucks are

loaded perfectly, and that we’re

constantly measuring and

improving our performance 

in the eyes of our customers.

training and technology – to

ensure we are prepared for 

the future and ready to meet 

it head on. Our vision for the

future is called the Next

Horizon. It’s an intensified

focus on the things we have

done well, designed with

tomorrow’s dynamics in mind.

Our capital plan in 2003 calls

for a significant increase in

spending, the bulk of which 

is allocated to manufacturing

capacity for the future to

accommodate consumers’

changing tastes and preference

for variety.

In 2002, we began the first

year of a three-year training

agenda for every employee

who is in a selling capacity,



A standardized selling 

platform and the rollout of

12,000 Next Generation

Handheld computers have

helped the PBG salesforce

reach the next level of sales

capability.

Pictured here, Territory Sales

Manager Dawn Massop 

puts the Next Generation

Handheld computer to use.
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the preferred supplier of our 

customers, and we have allocated

the resources to provide our sales

teams with the training, tools

and incentives to achieve that

status. We spent tens of thou-

sands of hours in the U.S. and

Canada putting our front line

salespeople through the first

phase of PBG’s proprietary 

training and certification 

process, upgrading their business

knowledge and standardizing

their selling methods, making

them more valuable business

partners for our customers.

Training was one component of

the 2002 agenda; motivation was

another. To inspire our salesforce

to exceed customer expectations,

PBG has developed a recognition

program we call “Circles of

Excellence” that will reward our

best salespeople at every level of

the organization, from the front

line to top-level management.

We restructured our sales 

compensation system for better

alignment with the main focus 

of our sales force: volume growth.

The new system rewards our

front line for in-store selling and

execution results, and, through 

a tiered commission design, puts

a premium on sales of our more

profitable packages.

The year also marked the rollout

of a transformational tool for our

U.S. sales teams: the Next

Generation Handheld computer,

a powerful technology that will

provide our sales reps real-time

data to make fact-based sales 

presentations, pre-determine

product “voids” for each account,

and help resolve issues such 

as “out-of-stocks” and time-

consuming paperwork.

In more than one way, the future

of PBG rests in the hands of

every member of our sales force.

Our goal: to make sure they are

the most capable hands that our

customers shake.

Selling

›

Sierra Mist is a growing

player in the second-largest

carbonated soft drink 

segment, lemon-lime. The

brand is now PBG’s sole

lemon-lime soda in the U.S.,

with the full force of our

sales, marketing and 

distribution behind it.

Customer Representative

Bryan Beam (right) discusses

Sierra Mist’s potential in his

customer’s account.

›

The Pepsi Bottling Group is 

first and foremost a selling

organization. To sell more, we

need to sell better. According 

to more than 4,500 of our 

customers surveyed, selling 

better means making their top

priorities our own.

In 2002, we set out to improve

the measures our customers

ranked as most important: the

accuracy of product deliveries and

management of inventory levels;

timing and quality of service;

and the responsiveness of our

salespeople. 

Our goal is to become a world-

class selling organization and 



We can identify the most profitable
sales opportunities for our customers
before we even walk through the
door of the account.
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onsumers in the U.S. spend 

$62 billion a year on 

carbonated soft drinks (CSDs) –

more than they do on any other

non-alcoholic beverage – making

CSDs the cornerstone of PBG’s

business and a valuable profit-

maker for our customers. At 

the same time, non-carbonated 

beverages have become the 

industry’s major growth engine.

Our ongoing success depends 

on growing both categories 

profitably. 

For the already well-developed

CSD category, growth is spurred

by innovation and reinvigoration,

and we’ve had a healthy dose of

both. In the past few years, the

PBG system has absorbed an

unprecedented stream of new

Pepsi-Cola products that have

helped keep the category relevant

and exciting. Lemon-flavored

Pepsi Twist and Pepsi Blue – a

cola-berry “fusion” launched in

the summer 2002 – have put a

fresh spin on colas and captured

new consumers. 

Cherry-flavored Mountain Dew

Code Red, going strong in its

second year of distribution, has

helped re-energize flavor CSDs.

And Sierra Mist, now the fastest-

growing national lemon-lime

soda in the U.S., has begun to do

the same for its segment. In 

non-carbs, our star player,

Aquafina, the leading national

bottled water brand in the U.S.,

continued its phenomenal

upward trend in 2002.

Aquafina’s U.S. volume grew

more than 35% overall. In 

food stores alone, the brand grew

With consumers’ tastes and

preferences always evolving,

the market for innovation is

“Red” hot. The introduction

of new products, such as

Mountain Dew Code Red,

has helped keep the 

carbonated soft drink 

category exciting and 

relevant for customers 

and consumers.

›

Aquafina grew more than

70% in food stores in 2002 –

two times the growth rate 

of the overall bottled water

category, largely due to the

support of our direct store

delivery system and the 

take-home packaging options

we’ve offered consumers.

›

Brand-building

C

more than 70% and gained 

nearly four share points, driven

by PBG’s concerted efforts to

make Aquafina a household 

staple. We introduced innovative

take-home packaging, designed

Aquafina end-cap displays 

and racks, and placed dedicated,

high-visibility coolers and 

vendors.

It is our powerful direct store

delivery system, by which 

PBG employees deliver and 

merchandise our products, that

enables us to swap displays 

on a dime, react immediately to

marketplace conditions, and

launch products virtually

overnight and seamlessly. It’s a

capability that has made the

impossible doable.



Over the last few years,
PBG has introduced 
nearly 40 new products
and packages to customers
without missing a beat – 
a feat of efficiency 
once unimaginable.
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Pepsi’s new designation as 

“the Official Soft Drink of the

NFL” gives PBG an exciting

marketing platform – 

the opportunity to develop

account-specific promotions

linked to professional football

teams, players and stadiums.

›

PBG’s “dual end-cap” program,

which simultaneously featured

our cola and flavor lineups,

grew sales volume of our brands

more than 5% in participating

accounts during the program’s

summertime run.

Quenten Wentworth, Director 

of Retail Sales (right), shares the

results of PBG’s dual end-cap

program with the store manager.

›

displays, captivating point-of-

purchase materials, and in-store

programs tailored to local 

community events. Strategic

placements of vendors, coolers

and fountain equipment – up

and down the street and at pres-

tigious stadiums and landmarks

– link our products to some of

the most dynamic and popular

attractions in our markets. 

Great products lend themselves

to great displays. During the

peak summer selling months 

of 2002, PBG leveraged the

strength and breadth of its cola

and flavor lineups with “dual

end-cap”displays, simultaneously

showcasing each CSD category

with its own distinct merchan-

dising and promotions. PBG’s

dual end-caps were a success; the

more than 9,000 participating

accounts drove both volume and

inventory growth across the

PBG system, surpassing growth

of the CSD category and the

competition during the same

time period.

Overall, in 2002 we grew 

our CSD display inventory 

more than any other beverage 

company in the U.S. In food

store accounts, we had 8% more

product in store than our chief

competitor. That’s a testament

to our sales and marketing 

capability, and proof that it is

possible to “out-merchandise”

the competition even in 

markets where we are not the

share leader.

hen consumers like 

what they see and see

what they like on display, the

sale moves from possible to

probable. In other words, sales

depend heavily on visual 

presence and appeal.

That’s why PBG’s marketing

capability is aimed at getting

more of our products on display

in ways that interest, excite and

attract consumers, and grow our

customers’ sales. One of PBG’s

strengths is making our bever-

ages stand out with creative 

Marketplace Execution

W



The right marketing partnerships 
can give PBG access to tens of thousands
of consumers in a single location.
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The installation of self-

contained, low-maintenance

fillers can help reduce the 

variable manufacturing costs

of our PET-bottled products 

by 45%.

Production Supervisor Nate

Mulhern operates the clean

design filler in PBG’s Denver,

Colorado plant.

›

PBG’s Warehouse Improvement

Process, which includes the 

use of pre-built starter pallets

and dual forklifts, will enable

PBG to manage a 25% increase

in stock keeping units in 

2003 profitably.

Product Availability Supervisor

Erik Jaspers operates a time-

saving dual forklift.

›

ver the past two years, 

the stream of Pepsi-Cola

innovation has increased PBG’s

stock keeping units (SKUs) by

20%. The growing number of

new products and packages 

has brought tremendous oppor-

tunity for our sales organization

and customers – along with

cost-control challenges for the

production and warehousing

teams supporting our front line. 

But challenges are meant to be

overcome. Complexities that

might have added costs to 

our supply chain have instead

yielded productivity and 

efficiency solutions in our U.S.

and Canada facilities, best 

practices being considered for

broader application. 

Our operations team has found

ways to accommodate the 

growing variety of products 

and the increased demand for

more space-consuming PET

packaging. One of them is 

a Warehouse Improvement

Process (WIP), by which we’ve

redesigned the layout of our

warehouses to maximize the use

of existing space, rather than

spend on expansion. The recon-

figuration of our loading

processes – also part of WIP –

improved the productivity of

warehouse employees, who can

fill orders more easily and 

accurately, and work better

instead of longer.

Production improvements 

have taken additional cost out 

of the system. In 2002, several

PBG locations installed new,

state-of-the-art, self-enclosed

fillers. Their lower operating

expenses can help decrease 

the variable manufacturing costs

of our PET-bottled products 

by 45% – among the lowest

PET production costs in 

the industry. 

Cost Productivity

O



Process improvements and 
state-of-the-art filler 
technology can deliver a 
nearly $60 million reduction 
in bottle manufacturing costs.



hile the U.S. is our

largest and most devel-

oped market, our international 

territories offer some of PBG’s

greatest opportunities to 

convert growth possibilities into

reality. By exporting our best 

capabilities – leadership, 

marketing, pricing, sales and

operations practices – we’ve

made progress in every one of

our international markets.

The PBG Russia business 

continued its upward climb in

share, volume and profitability

in 2002, by pursuing new 

business, introducing additional

products including Pepsi Blue,

Pepsi Twist and Gatorade, 

and employing proven PBG

processes for productivity and

efficiency gains. Brand Pepsi

grew almost 40% in 2002,

while our bottled water, 

Aqua Minerale, firmly held its

leadership position, growing

nearly 45%.

We introduced Pepsi Twist 

and Aquafina in Spain, adding

bottled water production to our

operations in that country. In

Greece, we strengthened our 

distribution network through

consolidation, and improved 

revenue by putting a disciplined

pricing structure in place.

Our two biggest acquisitions 

in 2002, both outside the U.S.,

were important strategic addi-

tions to PBG. The purchase of

the Pepsi bottler in Turkey

expanded PBG’s reach into one

of the youngest and fastest-

growing populations in Europe.
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Hot, thirst-inducing summers,

a large and growing popula-

tion, and a culture where 

carbonated soft drinks are part

of daily life make the Mexico

market ideal for successful 

beverage sales.

›

PBG’s business in Turkey 

operates with go-to-market

strategies similar to those in our

Spain and Greece territories,

facilitating the sharing of 

best sales, marketing and 

distribution practices.

›

W
Within the first several months

of our acquisition, we introduced

Aquafina to the market, and put

a strong management team in

place to grow the business.

The international market that

holds the most promise for 

PBG is Mexico – a country we

entered by acquiring the largest

Pepsi bottler in that geography

at the end of 2002. This 

acquisition brings a groundswell

of opportunity for us, adding

about 26,000 employees to our

workforce, 400,000 customers 

to our business, and more than 

$1 billion to our top line. 

The Mexican business already

had healthy profit margins, an

intensive direct store delivery

system and the country’s leading

water brand – Electropura. 

With a clear business strategy

now in place, PBG Mexico is a

story of great possibilities just

beginning to unfold.

International



If we sell just five
more servings of
Pepsi products to
each person in our
Mexico markets, we
will increase sales by
11 million 8-ounce
cases per year.
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Board of Directors

From left to right:

Ira D. Hall, 58, was elected 
to PBG’s Board in March 2003. 
Mr. Hall has been Chief
Executive Officer of Utendahl
Capital Management, L.P. since
2002. From 1999 to 2001, he
was Treasurer of Texaco Inc. 
and General Manager, Alliance
Management for Texaco Inc. 
from 1998 to 1999. From 1985
to 1998, Mr. Hall held several 
positions with International
Business Machines.

Susan D. Kronick, 51, 
(seated), was elected to PBG’s
Board in March 1999. Ms.
Kronick becameVice Chairman 
of Federated Department Stores 
in February 2003. Previously, 
she had been Group President 
of Federated Department Stores
since April 2001. From 1997 
to 2001, Ms. Kronick was
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Burdines, a division 
of Federated Department Stores.
From 1993 to 1997, Ms. Kronick
served as President of Federated’s
Rich’s/Lazarus/Goldsmith’s 
division. 

Blythe J. McGarvie, 46,
was elected to PBG’s Board in
March 2002. Ms. McGarvie is
President of Leadership for
International Finance, a private
consulting firm. From 1999 to
December 2002, Ms. McGarvie
was Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of
BIC Group. Ms. McGarvie is 
a Certified Public Accountant
and has also held senior 
positions at Hannaford Bros.
Co., Sara Lee Corporation and 
Kraft General Foods, Inc.

Margaret D. Moore, 55,
was elected to the Board in
January 2001. Ms. Moore 
is Senior Vice President,
Human Resources of PepsiCo, 
a position she assumed at the 
end of 1999. From November
1998 to December 1999, she
was Senior Vice President and
Treasurer of PBG. Prior to 
joining PBG, Ms. Moore spent
25 years with PepsiCo in a
number of senior financial and
human resources positions.



Linda G. Alvarado, 50, 
was elected to PBG’s Board 
in March 1999. She is President
and Chief Executive Officer of
Alvarado Construction, Inc., 
a general contracting firm 
specializing in commercial,
industrial, environmental and
heavy engineering projects, a
position she assumed in 1976. 

Barry H. Beracha, 61, 
was elected to PBG’s Board in
March 1999. He has been Chief
Executive Officer of Sara Lee
Bakery Group since August
2001. Previously, Mr. Beracha
was Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of The
Earthgrains Company since
1993. Earthgrains was formerly
part of Anheuser-Busch
Companies, where Mr. Beracha
served from 1967 to 1996. 

Clay G. Small, 53, was 
elected to PBG’s Board in 
May 2002. Mr. Small is Senior
Vice President and General
Counsel of Frito-Lay, Inc., 
a subsidiary of PepsiCo. 
Mr. Small joined PepsiCo as 
an attorney in 1981. He served
as Vice President and Division
Counsel of Pepsi-Cola Company
from 1983 to 1987 and Senior
Vice President and General
Counsel of Pizza Hut, Inc. from
1987 to 1997.

Richard W. Almquist
Business Unit 
General Manager, Texoma
5 years

Neal A. Bronzo
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Information Officer
12 years

John T. Cahill
Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer
13 years

Jaime Costa Lavín
Chief Executive Officer, 
PBG Mexico
5 months

L. Kevin Cox
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Personnel Officer
13 years

Alfred H. Drewes
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer
21 years

Andrea L. Forster
Vice President and Controller
15 years

Eric J. Foss
President, PBG North America
20 years

Brent J. Franks
Senior Vice President, 
Sales and Marketing
21 years

Christopher D. Furman
Business Unit 
General Manager, Spain
16 years

Scott J. Gillesby
Business Unit 
General Manager, Central
21 years

James Keown
Business Unit 
General Manager, Southeast
27 years

Robert C. King
Business Unit 
General Manager, Mid-Atlantic
13 years

Harrald F. Kroeker
Managing Director, Transition
PBG Mexico
17 years

Linda Kuga Pikulin
President, PBG Canada
21 years

Pamela C. McGuire
Senior Vice President, 
General Counsel and Secretary
25 years

Yiannis Petrides
President, PBG Europe
15 years

Craig A. Reese
Business Unit 
General Manager, 
Southern California
18 years

Eric W. Reinhard
Business Unit 
General Manager, Great West
19 years

William L. Robinson
Business Unit 
General Manager, 
Pacific Northwest
18 years

Barry J. Shea
Business Unit 
General Manager, Russia
26 years

Paul T. Snell
Business Unit 
General Manager, Northeast
26 years

Gary K. Wandschneider
Senior Vice President,
Operations
21 years
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Officers
John T. Cahill, 45, was 
elected to PBG’s Board in
January 1999 and became
Chairman of the Board in
January 2003. He has been
PBG’s Chief Executive Officer
since September 2001.
Previously, Mr. Cahill served as
President and Chief Operating
Officer, and prior to that as 
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer. 
He was Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Pepsi-Cola
Company from April 1998 
to November 1998. 

Thomas H. Kean, 67, 
was elected to PBG’s Board in
March 1999. Mr. Kean has
been President of Drew
University since 1990 and was
the Governor of the State of
New Jersey from 1982 to 1990.
Mr. Kean is also Chairman of
The National Commission on
Terrorist Attacks Upon the
United States.

Craig E. Weatherup, 57,
(seated), was elected to PBG’s
Board in January 1999. He 
was Chairman of the Board of
PBG from March 1999 to
January 2003. Mr. Weatherup
retired as Chairman of the
Board in 2003, but continues
to serve on the Board as a 
non-employee director. Mr.
Weatherup was also Chief
Executive Officer of PBG from
March 1999 to September 2001.

Committees:
1 Audit and Affiliated Transactions
2 Compensation and Management Development
3 Nominating and Corporate Governance

2,3

2,3

1,2

2



Account-specific 

promotion: a program 

custom designed to drive sales 

in a particular account

Cold drink: cold products 

sold in retail and on-premise

channels

Channel: outlets that are 

similar in size, and that buy,

merchandise, and sell 

soft drinks in similar ways

Direct Store Delivery:

products go from our plant or

warehouse directly to a customer

account and are merchandised 

by PBG employees

Dual forklift: equipment 

capable of moving twice as 

much product in one move as 

a single forklift, enhancing 

warehouse productivity

End-cap display: a prominent

display of soft drink products 

at the end of an aisle

Filler: plant equipment that

dispenses product into bottles

and cans

Flavor CSD: non-cola 

carbonated soft drinks that 

are fruit-flavored, such as 

cherry, orange, lemon-lime,

neon or root beer

Out-of-stock: refers to 

shelf space or vendors lacking 

product

PET: Polyethylene

Terephthalate. Resin material

used to manufacture plastic

bottles

Physical case: the measure-

ment bottlers use for the 

number of units that are

actually produced, distributed

and sold. Each case of product,

regardless of package 

configuration, represents 

one physical case.

Point-of-purchase:

advertising placed near the

location of the product in 

the store

Product voids: refers to 

products (or packages) that 

have not yet been sold to a 

particular account

Starter pallets: pre-built 

pallets of products that give

loaders a “head start” toward

building customer orders

SKU: Stock Keeping Unit.

Every item that has a unique

brand/package/price 

combination

Take-home: unchilled 

products sold for at-home or

future consumption

8-ounce case: conversion used

in the soft drink industry for

measuring volume regardless of

package size. There are 192

ounces in one 8-ounce case.
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Overview
The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. (collectively referred to as
“PBG,” “we,” “our” and “us”) is the world’s largest manufacturer,
seller and distributor of carbonated and non-carbonated Pepsi-
Cola beverages. We have the exclusive right to manufacture, sell
and distribute Pepsi-Cola beverages in all or a portion of the
United States, Canada, Spain, Greece, Russia, Turkey and, as a
result of our recent acquisition, Mexico. In 2002, approximately
82% of our net revenues were generated in the United States
with the remaining 18% generated outside the United States. In
2003, we expect approximately 72% of our net revenues to come
from the U.S., 12% of our net revenues to come from our newly
acquired operations in Mexico, and the remaining 16% to come
from operations outside the U.S. and Mexico.

The brands we sell are some of the best-recognized trademarks 
in the world and include Pepsi-Cola, Diet Pepsi, Mountain
Dew, Mountain Dew Code Red, Lipton Brisk, Mug,
Aquafina, Diet Mountain Dew, Pepsi Twist, Starbucks
Frappuccino, Sierra Mist, Dole and SoBe and, outside of
the United States, Pepsi-Cola, Mirinda, 7 UP, KAS,
Electropura, Aqua Minerale, Manzanita Sol, Squirt,
Garci Crespo, Fiesta, Pepsi Light, IVI, Yedigun and
Fruko. In some of our U.S. territories, we also have the right 
to manufacture, sell and distribute soft drink products of com-
panies other than PepsiCo, Inc., including Dr Pepper and 
All Sport, and through December 2002, 7 UP.

The following discussion and analysis covers the key drivers
behind our business performance in 2002 and is categorized 
into seven major sections. The first four sections discuss applica-
tion of critical accounting policies, related party transactions,
items that affect the comparability of historical or future results
and non-GAAP measures. The next two sections provide an
analysis of our results of operations and liquidity and financial
condition. The last section contains a discussion of our market
risks and cautionary statements. The discussion and analysis
throughout Management’s Financial Review should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related accompanying notes.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies 
The preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in

our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related accompa-
nying notes, including various claims and contingencies related
to lawsuits, taxes, environmental and other matters arising out
of the normal course of business. We use our best judgment,
based on the advice of external experts and our knowledge of
existing facts and circumstances and actions that we may under-
take in the future, in determining the estimates that affect our
Consolidated Financial Statements. For each of the critical
accounting estimates discussed below we have reviewed our 
policies, assumptions and related disclosures with our Audit and
Affiliated Transactions Committee.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts A portion of our accounts 
receivable will not be collected due to customer issues and 
bankruptcies. We provide reserves for these situations based on
the evaluation of the aging of our trade receivable portfolio and 
a customer-by-customer analysis of our high-risk customers.
Our reserves contemplate our historical loss rate on receivables,
specific customer situations and the economic environments 
in which we operate. 

As of December 28, 2002, our allowance for doubtful accounts
was $67 million and $42 million as of December 29, 2001, and
December 30, 2000, which represents management’s best 
estimate of probable losses inherent in our portfolio. While the
overall quality of our receivable portfolio has remained relatively
stable, we continue to pay particular attention to those 
customers that represent a higher potential risk. In 2002, as a
result of the deterioration of the financial condition of certain
customers, we have recorded additional reserves based upon 
estimates of uncollectibility. The following is an analysis of the
allowance for doubtful accounts for the fiscal years ended
December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001, and December 30, 2000:

Allowance for 

Doubtful Accounts

2002 2001 2000

Beginning of the year $ 42 $42 $48
Bad debt expense 32 9 3
Additions from acquisitions 14 – –
Accounts written off (22) (9) (8)
Foreign currency translation 1 – (1)

End of the year $ 67 $42 $ 42

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Management’s Financial Review
Tabular dollars in millions, except per share data
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value of our franchise rights with indefinite lives exceeded their 
carrying amounts in 2002.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we evaluate goodwill on a 
country-by-country basis (“reporting unit”) for impairment. We
evaluate each reporting unit for impairment based upon a two-step
approach. First, we compare the fair value of our reporting unit
with its carrying value. Second, if the carrying value of our report-
ing unit exceeds its fair value, we compare the implied fair value 
of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount to measure
the amount of impairment loss. In measuring the implied fair value
of goodwill, we would allocate the fair value of the reporting unit
to each of its assets and liabilities (including any unrecognized
intangible assets). Any excess of the fair value of the reporting unit
over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied
fair value of goodwill.

We measure the fair value of a reporting unit as the discounted 
estimated future cash flows, including a terminal value which
assumes the business continues in perpetuity, less its respective
minority interest and net debt (net of cash and cash equivalents).
Our long-term terminal growth assumptions reflect our current
long-term view of the marketplace. Our discount rate is based 
upon our weighted average cost of capital. Each year we re-evaluate
our assumptions in our discounted cash flow model to address
changes in our business and marketplace conditions. Based upon
our annual impairment analysis in the fourth quarter of 2002, the
estimated fair value of our reporting units exceeded their carrying
value and as a result, we did not proceed to the second step of the
impairment test.

Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate 
discounted future cash flows, which may be impacted by future
actions taken by us and our competitors and the volatility in the
markets in which we conduct business. A change in assumptions 
in our cash flows could have a significant impact on the fair value 
of our reporting units, which could then result in a material
impairment charge to our results of operations.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans We sponsor pension and other
postretirement benefit plans in various forms, covering employees
who meet specified eligibility requirements. We account for our
defined benefit pension plans and our postretirement benefit plans
using actuarial models required by SFAS No. 87, “Employers’
Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS No.106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” 
The amounts necessary to fund future payouts under these plans 
are subject to numerous assumptions and variables including 
anticipated discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and

Estimating an allowance for doubtful accounts requires 
significant management judgment and is dependent upon the
overall economic environment and, in particular, our customers’
viability. We have effective credit controls in place to manage
these exposures and believe that our allowance for doubtful
accounts adequately provides for these risks.

Recoverability of Goodwill and Intangible Assets with Indefinite Lives
During 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No.142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
which requires that goodwill and intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested
for impairment. Effective the first day of fiscal year 2002, we 
no longer amortize goodwill and certain franchise rights, but 
evaluate them for impairment annually. 

Our identifiable intangible assets principally arise from the
allocation of the purchase price of businesses acquired, and 
consist primarily of franchise rights. Our franchise rights are
typically perpetual in duration, subject to compliance with the
underlying franchise agreement. The value and life of our 
franchise rights are directly associated with the underlying 
portfolio of brands that we are entitled to make, sell and 
distribute under applicable franchise agreements. In considering
whether franchise rights have an indefinite useful life, we 
consider the nature and terms of the underlying franchise 
agreements; our intent and ability to use the franchise rights; 
and the age and market position of the products within the 
franchise, as well as the historical and projected growth of those
products. We assign amounts to such identifiable intangibles
based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. 

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 
No. 02-07, “Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets,” we evaluate our franchise
rights with indefinite useful lives for impairment annually as asset
groups on a country-by-country basis (“asset groups”). We measure
the fair value of these asset groups utilizing discounted estimated
future cash flows, including a terminal value, which assumes the
franchise rights will continue in perpetuity. Our long-term 
terminal growth assumptions reflect our current long-term view 
of the marketplace. Our discount rate is based upon our weighted
average cost of capital plus an additional risk premium to reflect the
risk and uncertainty inherent in separately acquiring a franchise
agreement between a willing buyer and a willing seller. Each year
we re-evaluate our assumptions in our discounted cash flow model
to address changes in our business and marketplace conditions.
Based upon our annual impairment analysis, the estimated fair

Annual Report 2002
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future compensation levels. We evaluate these assumptions with
our actuarial advisors on an annual basis and we believe that they
are appropriate and within acceptable industry ranges, although an
increase or decrease in the assumptions or economic events outside
our control could have a material impact on reported net income. 

The assets, liabilities and assumptions used to measure expense for
any fiscal year are determined as of September 30 of the preceding
year (“measurement date”). The discount rate assumption used in
our pension and postretirement benefit plans’ accounting is based
on current interest rates for high-quality, long-term corporate debt
as determined on each measurement date. The expected return on
plan assets is based on our long-term historical experience, our plan
asset allocation and our expectations for long-term interest rates
and market performance. In evaluating our rate of return on assets
for a given fiscal year, we consider a 15 to 20-year time horizon for
our pension investment portfolio. In addition, we look at the return
on asset assumptions used by other companies in our industry as
well as other large companies. Over the past three fiscal years the
composition of our plan assets was approximately 70%–75% equity
investments and 25%–30% fixed income securities, which primar-
ily consist of U.S. government and corporate bonds. Differences
between actual and expected returns are generally recognized in 
the net periodic pension calculation over five years. To the extent
the amount of all unrecognized gains and losses exceeds 10% of 
the larger of the benefit obligation or plan assets, such amount 
is amortized over the average remaining service life of active 
participants. The rate of future compensation increases is based
upon our historical experience and management’s best estimate
regarding future expectations. We amortize prior service costs on 
a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of
employees expected to receive benefits.

For our postretirement plans that provide medical and life 
insurance benefits, we review external data and our historical health
care cost trends with our actuarial advisors to determine the health
care cost trend rates.

During 2002, our defined benefit pension and postretirement expenses
were $41 million. We utilized the following weighted-average assump-
tions to compute our pension and postretirement expense in 2002:

Discount rate 7.5%
Expected return on plan assets 

(net of administrative expenses) 9.5%
Rate of compensation increase 4.3%

In 2003, our defined benefit pension and postretirement
expenses will increase by $36 million due primarily to the 
following:

• A decrease in our net weighted-average expected return on
plan assets from 9.5% to 8.5% due to declines in the level 
of returns on our plan assets over the last several years.
Additionally, amortization of asset losses resulting from 
differences between our expected and actual return on plan
assets will contribute to the increase in our pension expense
during 2003. These changes will increase our 2003 defined
benefit pension and postretirement expense by approximately
$15 million. 

• A decrease in our weighted-average discount rate for our pension
and postretirement expense from 7.5% to 6.8%, reflecting
declines in the yields of long-term corporate bonds. This
assumption change will increase our defined benefit pension
and postretirement expense by approximately $15 million.

• Expiration of amortization credits, changes in demographics
and medical trend rates, and other plan changes will increase
our defined benefit pension and postretirement expense by
approximately $16 million; and

• Contributions of $151 million to our pension plan during
2002 will reduce our 2003 defined benefit pension expense
by approximately $10 million. Our plans have been funded
to be in compliance with the funding provisions of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and have
been made in accordance with applicable tax regulations that
provide for current tax deductions for our contributions and
for taxation to the employee of plan benefits when the benefits
are received. 

Casualty Insurance Costs Due to the nature of our business, we
require insurance coverage for certain casualty risks. Given the
rapidly increasing costs associated with obtaining third-party
insurance coverage for our casualty risks in the U.S., in 2002 we
moved to a self-insurance program for these risks. We are self-
insured for workers’ compensation, automobile, product and
general liability risks for occurrences up to $5 million. We 
purchase casualty insurance from a third-party for losses per
occurrence exceeding $5 million. The casualty insurance costs
for our self-insurance program represent the ultimate net cost 
of all reported and estimated unreported losses incurred during
the fiscal year. We do not discount loss expense reserves. 

Our liability for casualty costs is estimated using individual
case-based valuations and statistical analyses and is based upon
historical experience, actuarial assumptions and professional
judgment. These estimates are subject to the effects of trends 
in loss severity and frequency and are based on the best data
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available to us. However, these estimates are also subject to a
significant degree of inherent variability. We evaluate these 
estimates with our actuarial advisors on an annual basis and we
believe that they are appropriate and within acceptable industry
ranges, although an increase or decrease in the estimates or 
economic events outside our control could have a material
impact on reported net income. Accordingly, the ultimate 
settlement of these costs may vary significantly from the 
estimates included in our financial statements.

Income Taxes Our effective tax rate is based on income, statutory
tax rates and tax planning opportunities available to us in the
various jurisdictions in which we operate. The tax bases of our
assets and liabilities reflect our best estimate of the ultimate 
outcome of our tax audits. Significant management judgment is
required in determining our effective tax rate and in evaluating
our tax position. We establish reserves when, despite our belief
that our tax return positions are supportable, we believe these
positions may be challenged. We adjust these reserves as 
warranted by changing facts and circumstances. A change in 
our tax reserves could have a significant impact on our results 
of operations. 

Under our tax separation agreement with PepsiCo, Inc.
(“PepsiCo”), PepsiCo maintains full control and absolute discre-
tion for any combined or consolidated tax filings for tax periods
ended on or before our initial public offering that occurred in
March 1999. However, PepsiCo may not settle any issue without
PBG’s written consent, which consent cannot be unreasonably
withheld. PepsiCo has contractually agreed to act in good faith
with respect to all tax audit matters affecting us. In accordance
with the tax separation agreement, we will bear our allocable
share of any risk or upside resulting from the settlement of tax
matters affecting us for these periods.

A number of years may elapse before a particular matter for
which we have established a reserve is audited and finally
resolved. The number of years for which we have audits that are
open varies depending on the tax jurisdiction. The U.S. Internal
Revenue Service is currently examining our and PepsiCo’s joint
tax returns for 1994 through 1997 and our tax returns for 1999
and 2000. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome
or the timing of the resolution, we believe that our reserves
reflect the probable outcome of known tax contingencies.
Favorable resolutions would be recognized as a reduction of our
tax expense in the year of resolution. Unfavorable resolutions
would be recognized as a reduction of our reserves and a cash
outlay for settlement.

Related Party Transactions
PepsiCo is considered a related party due to the nature of our
franchisee relationship and its ownership interest in our com-
pany. Approximately 90% of PBG’s 2002 volume was derived
from the sale of Pepsi-Cola beverages. At December 28, 2002,
PepsiCo owned approximately 37.8% of our outstanding com-
mon stock and 100% of our outstanding class B common stock,
together representing approximately 42.9% of the voting power
of all classes of our voting stock. In addition, PepsiCo owns
6.8% of the equity of Bottling Group, LLC, our principal oper-
ating subsidiary. We fully consolidate the results of Bottling
Group, LLC and present PepsiCo’s share as minority interest in
our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The most significant agreements that govern our relationship
with PepsiCo consist of:

(1) The master bottling agreement for cola beverages bearing the
“Pepsi-Cola” and “Pepsi” trademark in the United States; mas-
ter bottling agreements and distribution agreements for non-
cola products in the United States, including Mountain Dew;
and a master fountain syrup agreement in the United States; 

(2) Agreements similar to the master bottling agreement and
the non-cola agreements for each country, including Canada,
Spain, Russia, Greece, Turkey and Mexico, as well as a foun-
tain syrup agreement similar to the master syrup agreement
for Canada;

(3) A shared services agreement whereby PepsiCo provides us 
or we provide PepsiCo with certain support, including 
information technology maintenance, procurement of raw
materials, shared space, employee benefits, credit and collec-
tion, international tax and accounting services. The amounts
paid or received under this contract are equal to the actual
costs incurred by the company providing the service. Through
2001, a PepsiCo affiliate provided casualty insurance to us; and

(4) Transition agreements that provide certain indemnities to
the parties, and provide for the allocation of tax and other
assets, liabilities, and obligations arising from periods prior
to the initial public offering. Under our tax separation agree-
ment, PepsiCo maintains full control and absolute discretion 
for any combined or consolidated tax filings for tax periods
ended on or before the initial public offering. PepsiCo has
contractually agreed to act in good faith with respect to all
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tax audit matters affecting us. In addition, PepsiCo has
agreed to use its best efforts to settle all joint interests in any
common audit issue on a basis consistent with prior practice.

Bottler Incentives and Other Arrangements We share a business 
objective with PepsiCo of increasing the availability and 
consumption of Pepsi-Cola beverages. Accordingly, PepsiCo, at
its discretion, provides us with various forms of bottler incentives
to promote its beverages. These incentives cover a variety of 
initiatives, including direct marketplace support, capital 
equipment funding and advertising support. Based on the 
objective of the programs and initiatives, we record bottler
incentives as an adjustment to net revenues or as a reduction of
selling, delivery and administrative expenses. Direct marketplace
support represents PepsiCo’s funding to assist us in offering sales
and promotional discounts to retailers and is recorded as an
adjustment to net revenues. Capital equipment funding is
designed to help offset the costs of purchasing and installing
marketing equipment, such as vending machines and glass door
coolers at customer locations and is recorded as a reduction of
selling, delivery and administrative expenses. Advertising 
support represents the cost of media time, promotional materials,
and other advertising and marketing costs that are funded by
PepsiCo and is recorded as a reduction to advertising and 
marketing expenses within selling, delivery and administrative
expenses. In addition, PepsiCo may share certain media costs
with us due to our joint objective of promoting PepsiCo brands.
There are no conditions or other requirements that could result
in a repayment of the bottler incentives received. Bottler 
incentives received from PepsiCo, including media costs shared
by PepsiCo, were $560 million, $554 million and $524 million
for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Of these amounts, we
recorded $257 million, $262 million and $244 million for 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively, in net revenues, and the remainder
as a reduction of selling, delivery and administrative expenses.

Purchases of Concentrate and Finished Product We purchase concen-
trate from PepsiCo, which is the critical flavor ingredient used
in the production of carbonated soft drinks and other ready-to-
drink beverages. PepsiCo determines the price of concentrate
annually at its discretion. We also pay a royalty fee to PepsiCo
for the Aquafina trademark. Amounts paid or payable to
PepsiCo and its affiliates for concentrate and royalty fees were
$1,699 million, $1,584 million and $1,507 million in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. 

We also produce or distribute other products and purchase 
finished goods and concentrate through various arrangements

with PepsiCo or PepsiCo joint ventures. During 2002, 
2001 and 2000, total amounts paid or payable to PepsiCo 
for these transactions were $464 million, $375 million and 
$155 million, respectively. 

We provide manufacturing services to PepsiCo and PepsiCo
affiliates in connection with the production of certain finished
beverage products. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, total amounts
paid or payable by PepsiCo for these transactions were 
$10 million, $32 million and $36 million, respectively. 

Fountain Service Fee We manufacture and distribute fountain
products and provide fountain equipment service to PepsiCo
customers in some territories in accordance with the Pepsi 
beverage agreements. Amounts received from PepsiCo for these
transactions are offset by the cost to provide these services and
are reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in
selling, delivery and administrative expenses. Net amounts 
paid or payable by PepsiCo to us for these services were 
approximately $200 million, $185 million and $189 million, 
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

Other Transactions Prior to 2002, Hillbrook Insurance
Company, Inc., a subsidiary of PepsiCo, provided insurance
and risk management services to us pursuant to a contractual
agreement. Total premiums paid to Hillbrook Insurance
Company, Inc. during 2001 and 2000 were $58 million and
$62 million, respectively. 

We provide PepsiCo and PepsiCo affiliates or PepsiCo provides
us various services pursuant to a shared services agreement and
other arrangements, including information technology mainte-
nance, procurement of raw materials, shared space, employee
benefits, credit and collection, international tax and accounting
services. Total net expenses incurred were approximately $57
million, $133 million and $117 million during 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

We purchase snack food products from Frito-Lay, Inc., a 
subsidiary of PepsiCo, for sale and distribution in all of Russia
except Moscow. Amounts paid or payable to PepsiCo and its
affiliates for snack food products were $44 million, $27 million
and $24 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The Consolidated Statements of Operations include the 
following income (expense) amounts as a result of transactions
with PepsiCo and its affiliates:

2002 2001 2000

Net revenues:
Bottler incentives $ 257 $ 262 $ 244

Cost of sales:
Purchases of concentrate and 

finished products, and 
Aquafina royalty fees $(2,163) $(1,959) $(1,662)

Manufacturing and distribution
service reimbursements 10 32 36

$(2,153) $(1,927) $(1,626)

Selling, delivery and 
administrative expenses:
Bottler incentives $ 303 $ 292 $ 280
Fountain service fee 200 185 189
Frito-Lay purchases (44) (27) (24)
Insurance costs – (58) (62)
Shared services (57) (133) (117)

$ 402 $ 259 $ 266

We are not required to pay any minimum fees to PepsiCo, nor are we
obligated to PepsiCo under any minimum purchase requirements.

As part of our acquisition in Turkey, PBG paid PepsiCo 
$8 million for its share of Fruko Mesrubat Sanayii A.S. and
related entities. In addition, we sold certain brands to PepsiCo
from the net assets acquired for $16 million.

As part of our acquisition of Pepsi-Gemex, S.A. de C.V. (“Gemex”)
of Mexico, PepsiCo received $297 million for the tender of its
shares for its 34.4% ownership in the outstanding capital stock
of Gemex. In addition, PepsiCo made a payment to us for
$17 million, to facilitate the purchase and ensure a smooth 
ownership transition of Gemex. 

We paid PepsiCo $10 million and $9 million during 2002 and
2001, respectively, for distribution rights relating to the SoBe
brand in certain PBG-owned territories in the U.S. and Canada. 

In connection with PBG’s acquisition of Pepsi-Cola Bottling
of Northern California in 2001, PBG paid $10 million to
PepsiCo for its equity interest in Northern California. 

With respect to PepsiCo’s 6.8% ownership in Bottling Group,
LLC, our principal operating subsidiary, Bottling Group, LLC
will distribute pro rata to PepsiCo and us sufficient cash such
that aggregate cash distributed to us will enable us to pay our
income taxes and interest on our $1 billion 7% senior notes due
2029. PepsiCo’s pro rata cash distribution during 2002 from
Bottling Group, LLC was $11 million.

The $1.3 billion of 55⁄8% senior notes and the $1.0 billion of
53⁄8% senior notes issued on February 9,1999, by our subsidiary
Bottling Group, LLC are guaranteed by PepsiCo. In addition, the
$1.0 billion of 45⁄8% senior notes issued on November 15, 2002,
also by Bottling Group, LLC, will be guaranteed by PepsiCo in
accordance with the terms set forth in the related indenture.

Amounts payable to PepsiCo and its affiliates were $26 million
and $17 million at December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001,
respectively. Such amounts are recorded within accounts payable
and other current liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Board of Directors
Two of our board members are employees of PepsiCo. Neither
of these board members serves on our Audit and Affiliated
Transactions Committee. In addition, one of our managing
directors of Bottling Group, LLC, our principal operating 
subsidiary, is an employee of PepsiCo. 

Items That Affect Historical or Future Comparability

Gemex Acquisition
In November 2002, we acquired all of the outstanding capital
stock of Gemex. Our total acquisition cost consisted of a net
cash payment of $871 million and assumed debt of approxi-
mately $305 million. The Gemex acquisition was made to allow
us to increase our markets outside the United States. Gemex is
the largest Pepsi-Cola bottler in Mexico and the largest bottler
outside the United States of Pepsi-Cola soft drink products
based on sales volume. Gemex produces, sells and distributes a
variety of soft drink products under the Pepsi-Cola, Pepsi
Light, Pepsi Max, Pepsi Limon, Mirinda, 7 UP, Diet 7 UP,
KAS, Mountain Dew, Power Punch and Manzanita Sol 
trademarks, under exclusive franchise and bottling arrangements
with PepsiCo and certain affiliates of PepsiCo. Gemex also 
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has rights to produce, sell and distribute in Mexico soft drink 
products of other companies and it produces, sells and 
distributes purified and mineral water in Mexico under the
trademarks Electropura and Garci Crespo, respectively. As
a result of the acquisition of Gemex, we own the Electropura
and Garci Crespo brands.

New Accounting Standards
During 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No.141, “Business
Combinations,” which requires that the purchase method of
accounting be used for all business combinations initiated or
completed after June 30, 2001, and SFAS No.142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” which requires that goodwill 
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be 
amortized, but instead tested for impairment. Effective the first
day of fiscal year 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill and 
certain franchise rights, but evaluate them for impairment 
annually. Based on our annual impairment review, we have
determined that our intangible assets are not impaired. If 
we had adopted SFAS No.142 at the beginning of 2000, our
amortization expense would have been reduced by approxi-
mately $129 million in each of 2001 and 2000. In addition, 
net income would have increased by approximately $91 million
(or $0.31 per diluted share) to $396 million (or $1.34 per
diluted share) in 2001 and $90 million (or $0.30 per diluted
share) to $319 million (or $1.07 per diluted share) in 2000. 

During 2002, the EITF addressed various issues related to the
income statement classification of certain payments received by
a customer from a vendor. In November 2002, the EITF reached
a consensus on Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Reseller for
Cash Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including
a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products),” addressing the recognition
and income statement classification of various consideration
given by a vendor to a customer. Among its requirements, the
consensus requires that certain cash consideration received by a
customer from a vendor is presumed to be a reduction of the
price of the vendor’s products, and therefore should be 
characterized as a reduction of cost of sales when recognized in
the customer’s income statement, unless certain criteria are met.
EITF Issue No. 02-16 will be effective beginning in our fiscal

year 2003. We currently classify bottler incentives received from
PepsiCo and other brand owners as adjustments to net revenues
and selling, delivery and administrative expenses. In accordance
with EITF Issue No. 02-16, we will classify certain bottler
incentives as a reduction of cost of sales beginning in 2003. 
We are currently assessing the transitional guidance, released 
by the EITF, to determine the net impact to our Consolidated
Financial Statements. 

Stock Split
On November 27, 2001, our shareholders approved an amend-
ment to our Certificate of Incorporation increasing the authorized
shares of PBG common stock from 300 million to 900 million
facilitating a two-for-one stock split of issued common stock.
The stock split was effected in the form of a 100% stock dividend
paid to our shareholders of record on November 27, 2001. As a
result of the stock split, the accompanying Management’s
Financial Review and Consolidated Financial Statements reflect
an increase in the number of outstanding shares of common stock
and shares of treasury stock and the transfer of the par value of
these incremental shares from additional-paid-in-capital to 
common stock. All PBG share and per share data were restated 
to reflect the split.

Fiscal Year
Our fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in December and, as a
result, a 53rd week is added every five or six years. Fiscal years
2002 and 2001 consisted of 52 weeks, while fiscal year 2000 
consisted of 53 weeks. The following table illustrates the
approximate dollar and percentage point impacts that the extra
week had on our operating results:

Percentage

Points

dollars in millions, except per share amounts Dollars 2001 vs. 2000

Volume N/A (2)
Net Revenues $ 113 (1)
Diluted Earnings per Share $0.02 (4)
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Concentrate Supply
We buy concentrate, the critical flavor ingredient for our 
products, from PepsiCo, its affiliates and other brand owners
who are the sole authorized suppliers. Concentrate prices are
typically determined annually.

In February 2002, PepsiCo announced an increase of 
approximately 3% in the price of U.S. concentrate. PepsiCo 
has recently announced a further increase of approximately 2%,
effective February 2003. Amounts paid or payable to PepsiCo
and its affiliates for concentrate were $1,590 million, $1,502 
million and $1,450 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, 
respectively, which excludes any payments to PepsiCo for 
royalty fees associated with the Aquafina trademark.

Non-GAAP Measures
We utilize certain non-GAAP measures to evaluate our 
performance. We consider these measures important indicators
of our success. These measures should not be considered an 
alternative to measurements required by U.S. GAAP such as net
income and net cash provided by operations or should not be
considered measures of our liquidity. In addition, our non-
GAAP measures may not be comparable to similar measures
reported by other companies and could be misleading unless all
companies and analysts calculate them in the same manner. 
Our key non-GAAP measures are:

Constant Territory 
We believe that constant territory performance results are the
most appropriate indicators of operating trends and performance,
particularly in light of our stated intention of acquiring 
additional bottling territories, and are consistent with industry
practice. Constant territory operating results are derived by
adjusting current year results to exclude significant current year
acquisitions and adjusting prior year results to include the results
of significant prior year acquisitions as if they had occurred on
the first day of the prior fiscal year. In addition, 2000 constant
territory results exclude the impact from an additional week in
our fiscal year (“53rd week”), which occurs every five or six years,
as our fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in December. 

Our constant territory results exclude the operating results of
the following acquisitions made during 2002:

• Fruko Mesrubat Sanayii A.S. and related companies of Turkey
in March 2002. 

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company of Macon, Inc. of Georgia in
March 2002.

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company of Aroostook, Inc. of Presque
Isle, Maine in June 2002. 

• Seaman’s Beverages Limited of the Canadian province of
Prince Edward Island in July 2002.

• Pepsi-Gemex, S.A. de C.V. of Mexico in November 2002.

• Kitchener Beverages Limited of Ontario, Canada in
December 2002.

We adjusted our prior year results to include the operating
results of the following prior year acquisitions as if they had
occurred on the first day of the prior fiscal year: 

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling of Northern California in May 2001.

• Pepsi-Cola Elmira Bottling Co. Inc. of New York in
August 2001.

Our prior year pro forma adjustments did not have a material
impact on our constant territory results.

The table below reconciles our U.S. GAAP reported results to our
constant territory results for 2002 vs. 2001 on a worldwide basis:

Worldwide 2002 vs. 2001

Impact

As Impact From 2001 Constant

Reported From 2002 Pro Forma Territory

Change Acquisitions Adjustments Change

Net revenues 9% –4% 0% 5%
Net revenue per case 1% 2% 0% 3%
Cost of sales 9% –5% 0% 4%
Cost of sales per case 1% 2% 0% 3%
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The table below reconciles our U.S. GAAP reported results to our
constant territory results for 2002 vs. 2001 for our U.S. operations:

U.S. 2002 vs. 2001

Impact

As Impact From 2001 Constant

Reported From 2002 Pro Forma Territory

Change Acquisitions Adjustments Change

Net revenues 5% 0% 0% 5%
Net revenue per case 3% 0% 0% 3%
Cost of sales 5% 0% –1% 4%
Cost of sales per case 3% 0% 0% 3%

The table below reconciles our U.S. GAAP reported results 
to our constant territory results for 2002 vs. 2001 for our 
operations outside the United States:

Outside the U.S. 2002 vs. 2001

Impact

As Impact From 2001 Constant

Reported From 2002 Pro Forma Territory

Change Acquisitions Adjustments Change

Net revenues 32% –26% 0% 6%
Net revenue per case –1% 4% 0% 3%
Cost of sales 31% –25% 0% 6%
Cost of sales per case –1% 4% 0% 3%

EBITDA
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
or EBITDA, which is computed as operating income plus the
sum of depreciation and amortization, is a key indicator that we
and others in our industry use to evaluate operating performance. 
We believe that current shareholders and potential investors in
our company use multiples of EBITDA in making investment
decisions about our company. We use multiples of EBITDA, in
combination with discounted cash flow analysis, as the primary
method of determining the value of bottling operations. 

The table below reconciles Operating Income to EBITDA for
2002 and 2001:

2002 2001 % Change

Operating Income $ 898 $ 676 33%
Add back:

Depreciation 443 379
Amortization 8 135

EBITDA $1,349 $1,190 13%

Financial Overview

Results of Operations – 2002
Volume

2002 vs. 2001

As Constant 

Reported Territory

Change Change

Volume 8 % 2%

Our worldwide reported physical case volume increased 8% 
in 2002, reflecting a 6% increase in volume resulting from our
acquisitions and a 2% increase in base volume. In the U.S.,
reported volume increased by 2%, reflecting a 1% increase from
acquisitions and a 1% increase in base volume. The weakness in
the economy and less travel caused softness in our U.S. results 
in the second half of the year. However, take-home volume, 
particularly in food stores, as well as volume in our convenience
and gas segment continues to grow. Additionally, U.S. volume
growth continued to benefit from innovation, as well as the
strong growth of Aquafina, offset by declines in trademark
Pepsi. Outside the U.S., our volumes increased 32% reflecting 
a 29% increase from our acquisitions in Turkey and Mexico.
Volume outside the U.S. from our base business increased 3%
due to double-digit growth in Russia driven by the strong 
performance of trademark Pepsi and Aqua Minerale, our water
product, which was partially offset by volume declines in Spain. 
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In 2003, we expect our worldwide constant territory volume to
grow between 2% and 3%. In the U.S., we expect our constant
territory volume growth projections to be flat to 1% for the full
year, which includes a 50 to 100 basis point negative impact
from our Sierra Mist transition. Beginning in 2003, we will 
no longer distribute 7 UP in the U.S., as we have decided to
manufacture, sell, and distribute Sierra Mist exclusively in all 
of our U.S. markets. This conversion will affect about one third
of our markets and will facilitate a unified and more effective
selling and marketing proposition as we support a single 
growing lemon-lime brand.

Net Revenues
2002 vs. 2001

As Constant 

Reported Territory

Change Change

Net revenues 9% 5%
Net revenue per case 1% 3%

Reported net revenues were $9.2 billion, a 9% increase over the
prior year, reflecting an 8% increase in volume and a 1%
increase in net revenue per case. In the U.S., reported net revenues
increased 5%, reflecting a 3% increase in net revenue per case
and a 2% increase in volumes. Net revenue per case growth in
the U.S. benefited from rate increases combined with lapping of
account level investment spending in the fourth quarter of 2001.
Reported net revenues outside the U.S. grew approximately
32%, reflecting a 32% increase in volume, offset by a 1%
decrease in net revenue per case. Net revenue per case outside
the U.S. grew 3% after excluding the impact of acquisitions.
The favorable impact of currency translations contributed over
1% to our net revenue per case growth in 2002 outside the
United States.

Our reported worldwide net revenues are expected to increase
approximately 16% in 2003. The majority of the increase in net
revenues will be driven by the full-year impact of results from the
six acquisitions made during 2002, combined with volume
increases from our base business.

Cost of Sales
2002 vs. 2001

Constant 

Reported Territory

Change Change

Cost of sales 9% 4%
Cost of sales per case 1% 3%

Cost of sales was $5.0 billion, a 9% increase over the prior year,
reflecting an 8% increase in volume and a 1% increase in cost of
sales per case. In the U.S., cost of sales increased by 5%, reflect-
ing a 3% increase in cost of sales per case and a 2% increase in
volume. The increase in U.S. cost of sales per case was driven 
by higher concentrate costs and mix shifts into higher cost 
packages. Cost of sales outside the U.S. grew by 31%, reflecting 
a 32% increase in volume offset by a 1% decrease in cost of
sales per case.

In 2003, we expect our reported cost of sales per case to decrease in
the mid single digits, due largely to the lower cost structure from
our newly acquired international operations, partially offset by an
increase in concentrate prices of 2% in the United States.

Selling, Delivery and Administrative Expenses 
Selling, delivery and administrative expenses grew 
$130 million, or 4% in 2002. Had we adopted SFAS No.142 
on the first day of 2001, amortization expense would have been
lowered by $129 million in 2001. The impact of the adoption of
SFAS No.142 was largely offset by increased selling, delivery
and administrative expenses resulting from our acquisitions in
Mexico and Turkey. Excluding acquisitions and the effects of
adopting SFAS No. 142, selling, delivery and administrative
expenses were up 4% for the year, driven by growth in our 
business and our continued investment in marketing equipment,
partially offset by favorable productivity gains. Selling, delivery
and administrative expenses were also favorably impacted as 
we lapped higher labor costs associated with labor contract
negotiations in the prior year, partially offset by increased
accounts receivable reserves resulting from the deterioration of
the financial condition of certain customers. 
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Interest Expense, Net 
Net interest expense decreased by $3 million, or 2%, in 2002
primarily reflecting the lower interest rate environment, 
partially offset by increased interest expense from our new
issuance of $1 billion in debt, the proceeds of which were 
utilized to finance our acquisition of Gemex. 

Other Non-Operating Expense, Net
Net other non-operating expense in 2002 increased $7 million
due primarily to the amortization of premiums associated with
derivative instruments that were utilized to mitigate currency
risk in our acquisition of Gemex. 

Minority Interest
Minority interest represents PepsiCo’s approximate 7% owner-
ship in our principal operating subsidiary, Bottling Group, LLC. 

Income Tax Expense Before Rate Change
Our full-year effective tax rate for 2002 was 34.0%, a 2.5 
percentage point decrease from the prior year before our income
tax rate charge benefit. The decrease in the effective tax rate is 
primarily a result of the implementation of SFAS No.142 in 2002
as goodwill amortization is not deductible under the U.S. tax
code. Our full-year effective tax rate for 2003 is expected to 
be 34.3%. 

Earnings Per Share
Shares in millions 2002 2001 2000

Basic earnings per share on 
reported net income $1.52 $1.07 $0.78

Weighted-average shares outstanding 282 286 294
Diluted earnings per share on 

reported net income $1.46 $1.03 $0.77
Weighted-average 

shares outstanding 293 296 299

Dilution
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that
could occur if stock options from our stock compensation plans
were exercised and converted into common stock that would
then participate in net income. Our stock price improvement
and employee option issuances during the last three years has
resulted in $0.06, $0.04 and $0.01 per share of dilution in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding
Shares outstanding reflect the effect of our share repurchase 
program, which began in October 1999. In addition, in
November 2001, we executed a two-for-one stock split in the
form of a 100% stock dividend, which doubled our weighted-
average shares outstanding. As a result of the stock split in
2001, the amount of shares authorized by the Board of Directors
to be repurchased totals 50 million shares, of which we have
repurchased approximately 40 million shares since the inception
of our share repurchase program.

Operating Income/EBITDA
Operating income was $898 million, representing a 33%
increase over 2001. This growth reflects the positive impact
from higher pricing, volume growth from our acquisitions and
base business, and the adoption of SFAS No.142 during 2002,
partially offset by increased selling, delivery and administrative
expenses. EBITDA (see page 26 for our definition of and use of
EBITDA) was $1,349 million in 2002, representing a 13%
increase over 2001. This growth was a reflection of higher 
pricing, volume growth from our acquisitions and base business,
offset by an increase in selling, delivery and administrative
expenses resulting from growth in our business.

In 2003, we expect our reported operating income to grow
approximately 15% driven largely by our 2002 acquisitions. 

Results of Operations – 2001

Volume
2001 vs. 2000

As Constant 

Reported Territory

Change Change

Volume 2 % 3%

Our worldwide physical case volume grew 2% in 2001, 
including an approximate 2 percentage point negative impact
from the 53rd week in 2000. Constant territory volume growth
was 3% in 2001, reflecting U.S. growth of more than 1% and
10% growth outside the United States. U.S. growth was led by
the introductions of Mountain Dew Code Red and Pepsi Twist,
expanded distribution of Sierra Mist, strong growth in
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Aquafina, as well as the integration of SoBe in the majority of
our markets. This growth was partially offset by declines in
brand Pepsi. New product innovation and consistent in-store
execution resulted in positive cold drink and take-home volume
growth in the United States. In addition, take-home volume
growth in the U.S. benefited from significant growth in mass
merchandiser volume. Outside the U.S., all countries delivered
solid volume growth in 2001, led by our operations in Russia.
Volume growth in Russia was driven by the introduction of
Mountain Dew and continued growth of Aqua Minerale, our
water product, and Fiesta, our value-brand beverage. 

Net Revenues 
2001 vs. 2000

As Constant 

Reported Territory

Change Change

Net revenues 6% 6%
Net revenue per case 3% 3%

Reported net revenues were $8,443 million in 2001, represent-
ing a 6% increase over the prior year, including an approximate
1 percentage point negative impact from the 53rd week in 2000.
On a constant territory basis, net revenues increased by 6%,
reflecting 3% volume growth and 3% growth in net revenue per
case. Constant territory U.S. net revenues grew 6%, consisting of
5% growth in net revenue per case and volume growth of more
than 1%. U.S. net revenue per case results reflect higher pricing,
primarily in food stores, and an increased mix of higher revenue
cold drink volume from new product innovation and double-
digit Aquafina growth. Constant territory net revenues outside
the U.S. grew 7%, reflecting volume growth of 10%, offset by
declines in net revenue per case of 3%. Excluding the negative
impact from currency translations, net revenue per case growth
was flat outside the U.S. and increased 4% worldwide.

Cost of Sales
2001 vs. 2000

As Constant 

Reported Territory

Change Change

Cost of sales 4% 5%
Cost of sales per case 1% 1%

Cost of sales increased $175 million, or 4% in 2001, including
an approximate 2 percentage point favorable impact from the

53rd week in 2000. On a constant territory basis, cost of sales
increased 5% driven by a 3% increase in volume and a more
than 1% increase in cost of sales per case. The increase in cost of
sales per case reflects higher U.S. concentrate costs and mix
shifts into higher cost packages and products, offset by country
mix and favorable currency translations. 

Selling, Delivery and Administrative Expenses 
Selling, delivery and administrative expenses grew 
$200 million, or 7%, over the comparable period in 2000,
including an approximate 1 percentage point favorable impact
from the 53rd week in 2000. Approximately half of the increase
came from higher selling and delivery costs, specifically our 
continued investments in our U.S. and Canadian cold drink
strategy including people, routes and equipment. Also 
contributing to the growth in selling, delivery and administra-
tive expenses are higher advertising and marketing costs, and
higher costs associated with investments in our information
technology systems.

Interest Expense, Net 
Net interest expense increased by $2 million, or 1%, in 2001
primarily reflecting lower interest income in 2001. The 
reduction in interest income was due to lower average cash 
balances in 2001, consistent with increases in acquisition 
spending and share repurchases, which were primarily funded
through cash generated from operations.

Minority Interest
Minority interest represents PepsiCo’s approximate 7% owner-
ship in our principal operating subsidiary, Bottling Group, LLC. 

Income Tax Expense Before Rate Change
Our full-year effective tax rate for 2001 was 36.5% before our
income tax rate change benefit. This rate corresponds to an 
effective tax rate of 37.0% in 2000. The one-half point decrease
is primarily due to the reduced impact of fixed non-deductible
expenses on higher than anticipated pre-tax income in 2001,
partially offset by the decreased favorable impact of our foreign
results. 
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Income Tax Rate Change Benefit
During 2001, the Canadian Government enacted legislation
reducing federal and certain provincial corporate income tax
rates. These rate changes reduced deferred tax liabilities 
associated with our operations in Canada, and resulted in 
one-time gains totaling $0.08 per diluted share in 2001.

EBITDA
On a reported basis, EBITDA (see page 26 for our definition of and
use of EBITDA) was $1,190 million in 2001, representing a 12%
increase over 2000, including an approximate 2 percentage point
negative impact from the 53rd week in 2000. This growth was a
reflection of higher pricing, an increased mix of higher-margin
cold drink volume, and solid volume growth in the U.S., 
as well as continued growth in our operations outside the U.S., 
particularly in Russia. These increases were partially offset by
investments in our cold drink infrastructure. 

Liquidity and Financial Condition

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We have financed our capital investments and acquisitions 
primarily through cash flows from operations, except for the
acquisition of Gemex, which was financed through the issuance
of $1 billion of senior notes. We believe that our future cash
flows from operations and borrowing capacity will be sufficient
to fund capital expenditures, acquisitions, dividends and 
working capital requirements. 

We intend to refinance all or a portion of our $1 billion of 53⁄8%
senior notes on their maturity in February 2004. We are 
currently in compliance with all debt covenants in our indenture
agreements discussed below.

Financing Transactions Relating to our 
Acquisition of Gemex
During 2002 we issued $645 million in commercial paper,
which was utilized as bridge financing in connection with our
acquisition of Gemex. In November 2002, the commercial
paper was repaid after our issuance of $1 billion of 45⁄8% senior
notes due in November 2012. We utilized the net proceeds of
the $1 billion of 4 5⁄8% senior notes, together with available cash
on hand, for our acquisition of Gemex and the covenant 
defeasance and repayment of a portion of Gemex’s debt. The 

$1 billion of 4 5⁄8% senior notes will be guaranteed by PepsiCo 
in accordance with the terms set forth in the related indenture. 

Other Financing Transactions
We converted our entire $1.0 billion of 53⁄8% senior notes and
$0.3 billion of 5 5⁄8% senior notes to floating rate debt through
the use of interest rate swaps with the objective of reducing our
overall borrowing costs. 

We have a $500 million commercial paper program that is 
supported by two $250 million credit facilities. One of the
credit facilities expires in May 2003 and the other credit facility
expires in April 2004. There were no borrowings outstanding
under these credit facilities at December 28, 2002, or 
December 29, 2001.

We have available short-term bank credit lines of approximately
$167 million and $177 million at December 28, 2002, and
December 29, 2001, respectively. These lines were used to 
support the general operating needs of our businesses outside
the United States. The weighted-average interest rate for 
these lines of credit outstanding at December 28, 2002, and
December 29, 2001, was 8.9% and 4.3%, respectively.

Long-Term Debt and Lease Obligations
Our future minimum commitments for our long-term debt and
noncancelable capital and operating leases are as follows at
December 28, 2002:

Payments due by period

Long-term debt Operating Total long-term debt
and capital leases leases and lease obligations

2003 18 34 52
2004 1,165 25 1,190
2005 5 19 24
2006 3 15 18
2007 37 14 51
Thereafter 3,306 70 3,376
Total $4,534 $177 $4,711

In addition, at December 28, 2002, we had outstanding letters 
of credit and surety bonds valued at $98 million primarily to
provide collateral for estimated self-insurance claims and other
insurance requirements. 
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Capital Expenditures
Our business requires substantial infrastructure investments 
to maintain our existing level of operations and to fund 
investments targeted at growing our business. Capital 
infrastructure expenditures totaled $623 million, $593 million
and $515 million during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Acquisitions 
During 2002 we acquired the operations and exclusive right to
manufacture, sell and distribute Pepsi-Cola beverages of several
different PepsiCo franchise bottlers. The following acquisitions
occurred for an aggregate purchase price of $936 million in cash
and $375 million of assumed debt:

• Fruko Mesrubat Sanayii A.S. and related companies of
Turkey in March. 

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company of Macon, Inc. of Georgia
in March.

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company of Aroostook, Inc. of Presque
Isle, Maine in June. 

• Seaman’s Beverages Limited of the Canadian province of
Prince Edward Island in July.

• Pepsi-Gemex, S.A. de C.V. of Mexico in November.

• Kitchener Beverages Limited of Ontario, Canada
in December.

The Mexican and Turkish acquisitions were made to allow us 
to increase our markets outside the United States. Our U.S. and
Canadian acquisitions were made to enable us to provide better
service to our large retail customers. We expect these acquisi-
tions to reduce costs through economies of scale.

We completed the acquisition of a Pepsi-Cola bottler based in
Buffalo, New York, in the first quarter of 2003. We intend to
continue to pursue other acquisitions of independent PepsiCo
bottlers in the U.S. and Canada, particularly in territories con-
tiguous to our own, where they create shareholder value. We
also intend to continue to evaluate international acquisition
opportunities as they become available.

Cash Flows

Fiscal 2002 Compared with Fiscal 2001
Net cash provided by operations increased $132 million to
$1,014 million, reflecting strong operating income growth, 
coupled with lower income tax payments and higher non-cash
casualty and benefits expenses, offset by an increase in our 
pension contributions. 

Net cash used for investments increased by $1,027 million to
$1,734 million, primarily due to the six acquisitions we made 
during the year, coupled with the investment in our debt 
defeasance trust and an increase in capital expenditures as we
continue to invest in small bottle production lines and cold 
drink equipment.

Net cash provided by financing increased by $882 million to
$673 million driven by proceeds received from our issuance 
of $1.0 billion of 45⁄8% senior notes to finance our acquisition 
of Gemex and an increase in stock option exercises, offset by a
reduction of short- and long-term borrowings primarily outside
the United States. 

Fiscal 2001Compared with Fiscal 2000
Net cash provided by operating activities increased $103 million
to $882 million in 2001, driven by strong operating income
growth and the timing of casualty insurance payments, partially
offset by higher pension contribution payments in 2001. 

Net cash used for investments increased by $175 million from
$532 million in 2000 to $707 million in 2001, primarily due to
acquisition spending and increased capital expenditures, which
were driven by increases in the U.S. associated with our cold
drink strategy. 

Net cash used for financing increased by $94 million to
$209 million in 2001. This increase primarily reflects our share
repurchase program offset by higher short-term borrowings out-
side the U.S. and proceeds from stock option exercises.
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Market Risks and Cautionary Statements

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
about Market Risk
In the normal course of business, our financial position is 
routinely subject to a variety of risks. These risks include the
risk associated with the price of commodities purchased and
used in our business, interest rate on outstanding debt and 
currency movements of non-U.S. dollar denominated assets 
and liabilities. We are also subject to the risks associated with
the business environment in which we operate, including the 
collectibility of accounts receivable. We regularly assess all of
these risks and have policies and procedures in place to protect
against the adverse effects of these exposures. 

Our objective in managing our exposure to fluctuations in 
commodity prices, interest rates, and foreign currency exchange
rates is to minimize the volatility of earnings and cash flows 
associated with changes in the applicable rates and prices. To
achieve this objective, we primarily enter into commodity 
forward contracts, commodity futures, and options on futures 
contracts and interest rate swaps. Our corporate policy prohibits
the use of derivative instruments for trading or speculative 
purposes, and we have procedures in place to monitor and 
control their use. 

A sensitivity analysis has been prepared to determine the effects
that market risk exposures may have on the fair values of our
debt and other financial instruments. To perform the sensitivity
analysis, we assessed the risk of loss in fair values from the hypo-
thetical changes in commodity prices, interest rates, and foreign
currency exchange rates on market-sensitive instruments.
Information provided by this sensitivity analysis does not 
necessarily represent the actual changes in fair value that we
would incur under normal market conditions because, due to
practical limitations, all variables other than the specific market
risk factor were held constant. In addition, the results of the
analysis are constrained by the fact that certain items are specifi-
cally excluded from the analysis, while the financial instruments
that relate to the financing or hedging of those items are
included. As a result, the reported changes in the values of some
financial instruments that affect the results of the sensitivity
analysis are not matched with the offsetting changes in the 
values of the items that those instruments are designed to
finance or hedge.

Commodity Price Risk
We are subject to market risks with respect to commodities
because our ability to recover increased costs through higher
pricing may be limited by the competitive environment in
which we operate. We use futures contracts and options on
futures in the normal course of business to hedge anticipated
purchases of aluminum and fuel used in our operations. With
respect to commodity price risk, we currently have various 
contracts outstanding for aluminum and fuel oil purchases in
2003 and 2004, which establish our purchase prices within
defined ranges. We had $16 million and $19 million in unreal-
ized losses based on the commodity rates in effect on December
28, 2002, and December 29, 2001, respectively. We estimate
that a 10% decrease in commodity prices with all other variables
held constant would have resulted in a decrease in the fair value
of our financial instruments of $32 million and $15 million at
December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk
The fair value of our fixed-rate long-term debt is sensitive to
changes in interest rates. Interest rate changes would result in
gains or losses in the fair market value of our debt representing
differences between market interest rates and the fixed rate on
the debt. As a result of the market risk, we effectively converted
$1.3 billion of our fixed rate debt to floating rate debt through
the use of interest rate swaps. The change in fair value of the
interest rate swaps resulted in an increase to our hedge and debt
instruments of $16 million and $7 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. We estimate that a 10% decrease in interest rates
with all other variables held constant would have resulted in an
increase in the fair value of our financial instruments, both our
fixed rate debt and our interest rate swaps, of $162 million and
$144 million at December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001,
respectively.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
In 2002, approximately 18% of our net revenues came from 
outside the United States. This amount is not indicative of our
2003 results due to our recent acquisition of Gemex.
Accordingly, in 2003 we expect approximately 28% of our net
revenues to come from outside the United States. Social, 
economic, and political conditions in these international markets
may adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows, and
financial condition. The overall risks to our international busi-
nesses include changes in foreign governmental policies, and
other political or economic developments. These developments
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may lead to new product pricing, tax or other policies, and 
monetary fluctuations, which may adversely impact our business.
In addition, our results of operations and the value of the foreign
assets and liabilities are affected by fluctuations in foreign 
currency exchange rates. 

As currency exchange rates change, translation of the statements
of operations of our businesses outside the U.S. into U.S. dollars
affects year-over-year comparability. We generally do not hedge
against currency risks because cash flows from our international
operations are usually reinvested locally. In addition, we histori-
cally have not entered into hedges to minimize the volatility 
of reported earnings. Based on our overall evaluation of market
risk exposures for our foreign currency financial instruments 
at December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001, a near-term
change in foreign currency exchange rates would not materially
affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations 
or cash flows in those periods. 

Foreign currency gains and losses reflect translation gains and
losses arising from the remeasurement into U.S. dollars of the 
net monetary assets of businesses in highly inflationary countries
and transaction gains and losses. Russia and Turkey have been 
considered highly inflationary economies for accounting purposes. 

Beginning in 2003, Russia will no longer be considered highly
inflationary, and will change its functional currency from the
U.S. dollar to the Russian ruble. We do not expect any 
material impact on our consolidated financial statements as a
result of Russia’s change in functional currency.

Unfunded Deferred Compensation Liability
Our unfunded deferred compensation liability is subject to
changes in our stock price, as well as price changes in certain
other equity and fixed income investments. 

Participating employees in our deferred compensation program
can elect to defer all or a portion of their compensation to be
paid out on a future date or dates. As part of the deferral process,
employees select from phantom investment options that 
determine the earnings on the deferred compensation liability
and the amount that they will ultimately receive. Employee
investment elections include PBG stock and a variety of other
equity and fixed income investment options.

Since the plan is unfunded, employees’ deferred compensation
amounts are not directly invested in these investment vehicles.
Instead, we track the performance of each employee’s investment
selections and adjust his or her deferred compensation account
accordingly. The adjustments to the employees’ accounts increases
or decreases the deferred compensation liability reflected on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets with an offsetting increase or
decrease to our selling, delivery and administrative expenses.

We use prepaid forward contracts to hedge the portion of our
deferred compensation liability that is based on our stock price.
Therefore, changes in compensation expense as a result of
changes in our stock price are substantially offset by the changes
in the fair value of these contracts. We estimate that a 10%
unfavorable change in the year-end stock price would have
reduced our gains from these commitments by $2 million in
2002 and $1 million in 2001.

Cautionary Statements
Except for the historical information and discussions contained
herein, statements contained in this annual report on Form 10-K
may constitute forward-looking statements as defined by the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-
looking statements are based on currently available competitive,
financial and economic data and our operating plans. These 
statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that could cause actual results to be materially different.
Among the events and uncertainties that could adversely affect
future periods are lower-than-expected net pricing resulting from
marketplace competition, material changes from expectations in
the cost of raw materials and ingredients, an inability to achieve
the expected timing for returns on cold drink equipment and
related infrastructure expenditures, material changes in expected
levels of bottler incentive payments from PepsiCo, material
changes in our expected interest and currency exchange rates, an
inability to achieve cost savings, an inability to achieve volume
growth through product and packaging initiatives, competitive
pressures that may cause channel and product mix to shift from
more profitable cold drink channels and packages, weather 
conditions in PBG’s markets, political conditions in PBG’s 
markets outside the United States and Canada, possible recalls 
of PBG’s products, an inability to meet projections for 
performance in newly acquired territories, unfavorable market
performance on our pension plan assets, unfavorable outcomes
from our U.S. Internal Revenue Service audits, and changes in
our debt rating.
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The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. Annual Report 2002

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal years ended December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001, and December 30, 2000 

in millions, except per share data 2002 2001 2000

Net Revenues $9,216 $8,443 $7,982
Cost of sales 5,001 4,580 4,405
Gross Profit 4,215 3,863 3,577
Selling, delivery and administrative expenses 3,317 3,187 2,987
Operating Income 898 676 590
Interest expense, net 191 194 192
Other non-operating expenses, net 7 – 1
Minority interest 51 41 33
Income Before Income Taxes 649 441 364
Income tax expense before rate change 221 161 135
Income tax rate change benefit – (25) –

Net Income $ 428 $ 305 $ 229

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.52 $ 1.07 $ 0.78
Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding 282 286 294
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.46 $ 1.03 $ 0.77
Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding 293 296 299

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. Annual Report 2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal years ended December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001, and December 30, 2000

dollars in millions 2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows – Operations
Net income $ 428 $ 305 $ 229
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:

Depreciation 443 379 340
Amortization 8 135 131
Deferred income taxes 131 23 –
Other non-cash charges and credits, net 228 182 176
Changes in operating working capital, excluding effects of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable (19) (28) 13
Inventories 13 (50) 11
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 33 2 (97)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (50) 57 28

Net change in operating working capital (23) (19) (45)
Pension contributions (151) (86) (26)
Other, net (50) (37) (26)

Net Cash Provided by Operations 1,014 882 779
Cash Flows – Investments
Capital expenditures (623) (593) (515)
Acquisitions of bottlers (936) (120) (26)
Sales of property, plant and equipment 6 6 9
Investment in debt defeasance trust (181) – –
Net Cash Used for Investments (1,734) (707) (532)
Cash Flows – Financing
Short-term borrowings, net – three months or less (78) 50 12
Proceeds from issuances of long-term debt 1,031 – –
Payments of long-term debt (120) – (9)
Minority interest distribution (11) (16) (3)
Dividends paid (11) (12) (12)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 93 18 –
Purchases of treasury stock (231) (249) (103)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing 673 (209) (115)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents (8) (7) (4)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (55) (41) 128
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Beginning of Year 277 318 190
Cash and Cash Equivalents – End of Year $ 222 $ 277 $ 318

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Liabilities incurred and/or assumed in conjunction with acquisitions of bottlers $ 813 $ 25 $ 9 

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001

in millions, except per share data 2002 2001

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 222 $ 277
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $67 in 2002 and $42 in 2001 922 823
Inventories 378 331
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 215 117

Total Current Assets 1,737 1,548
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,308 2,543
Intangible assets, net 4,687 3,684
Investment in debt defeasance trust 170 –
Other assets 125 82

Total Assets $10,027 $7,857

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 1,179 $1,004
Short-term borrowings 69 77

Total Current Liabilities 1,248 1,081
Long-term debt 4,523 3,285
Other liabilities 819 550
Deferred income taxes 1,265 1,021
Minority interest 348 319

Total Liabilities 8,203 6,256
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share: 

authorized 900 shares, issued 310 shares 3 3
Additional paid-in capital 1,750 1,739
Retained earnings 1,066 649
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (468) (370)
Treasury stock: 30 shares and 29 shares in 2002 and 2001, respectively, at cost (527) (420)

Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,824 1,601
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $10,027 $7,857

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Fiscal years ended December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001, and December 30, 2000
Accumu-

lated Other Compre-
Additional Compre- hensive

Common Paid-In Retained hensive Treasury Income/
in millions, except per share data Stock Capital Earnings Loss Stock Total (Loss)

Balance at December 25,1999 $ 2 $1,736 $138 $(223) $(90) $1,563
Comprehensive income:

Net income – – 229 – – 229 $ 229
Currency translation adjustment – – – (31) – (31) (31)

Total comprehensive income $ 198

Treasury stock transactions, net: 10 shares – – – – (103) (103)
Cash dividends declared on 

common stock (per share: $0.04) – – (12) – – (12)
Balance at December 30, 2000 2 1,736 355 (254) (193) 1,646
Comprehensive income:

Net income – – 305 – – 305 $ 305
Currency translation adjustment – – – (49) – (49) (49)
Cash flow hedge adjustment – – – (12) – (12) (12)
Minimum pension liability adjustment – – – (55) – (55) (55)

Total comprehensive income $ 189

Stock split: (shares: 145 outstanding – 9 treasury) 1 (1) – – – –
Stock option exercises: 2 shares – (4) – – 22 18
Tax benefit – stock option exercises – 8 – – – 8
Purchase of treasury stock: 12 shares – – – – (249) (249)
Cash dividends declared on 

common stock (per share: $0.04) – – (11) – – (11)
Balance at December 29, 2001 3 1,739 649 (370) (420) 1,601
Comprehensive income:

Net income – – 428 – – 428 $ 428

Currency translation adjustment – – – 18 – 18 18

Cash flow hedge adjustment – – – 7 – 7 7

Minimum pension liability adjustment – – – (123) – (123) (123)

Total comprehensive income $ 330

Stock option exercises: 8 shares – (31) – – 124 93

Tax benefit – stock option exercises – 42 – – – 42

Purchase of treasury stock: 9 shares – – – – (231) (231)

Cash dividends declared on 
common stock (per share: $0.04) – – (11) – – (11)

Balance at December 28, 2002 $ 3 $1,750 $1,066 $ (468) $ (527) $1,824

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 1: Basis of Presentation
The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. (“PBG”) consists of bottling
operations located in all or part of the United States, Canada,
Spain, Greece, Russia, Turkey and Mexico. These bottling 
operations manufacture, sell and distribute Pepsi-Cola beverages
including Pepsi-Cola, Diet Pepsi, Mountain Dew and other
brands of carbonated soft drinks and ready-to-drink beverages.
Approximately 90% of PBG’s 2002 volume was derived from
the sale of Pepsi-Cola beverages. References to PBG throughout
these Consolidated Financial Statements are made using the
first-person notations of “PBG,” “we,” “our” and “us.”

On November 27, 2001, our shareholders approved an amendment
to our Certificate of Incorporation increasing the authorized shares
of PBG common stock from 300 million to 900 million, facilitating
a two-for-one stock split of issued common stock. The stock split
was effected in the form of a 100% stock dividend paid to our share-
holders of record on November 27, 2001. As a result of the stock
split, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements reflect
an increase in the number of outstanding shares of common stock
and shares of treasury stock and the transfer of the par value of these
incremental shares from additional-paid-in-capital. All PBG share
and per share data were restated to reflect the split.

PepsiCo, Inc. (“PepsiCo”) owns 106,011,358 shares of our common
stock, consisting of 105,911,358 shares of common stock and
100,000 shares of Class B common stock. All shares of Class B 
common stock that have been authorized have been issued to
PepsiCo. PepsiCo’s ownership at December 28, 2002, represents
37.8% of the outstanding common stock and 100% of the 
outstanding Class B common stock, together representing 42.9% of
the voting power of all classes of our voting stock. As of December
28, 2002, PepsiCo also owns 6.8% of the equity of Bottling Group,
LLC, our principal operating subsidiary. 

The common stock and Class B common stock both have a par value
of $0.01per share and are substantially identical, except for voting
rights. Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share
and holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to 250 votes per
share. Each share of Class B common stock held by PepsiCo is, at
PepsiCo’s option, convertible into one share of common stock.
Holders of our common stock and holders of our Class B common
stock share equally on a per share basis in any dividend distributions.

In addition, our Board of Directors has the authority to issue up
to 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, and to determine the
price and terms, including, but not limited to, preferences and
voting rights, of those shares without stockholder approval.

Certain reclassifications were made in our Consolidated
Financial Statements to 2001 and 2000 amounts to conform to
the 2002 presentation.

Note 2: Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Basis of Consolidation The accounts of all of our wholly and
majority-owned subsidiaries are included in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements. We have eliminated 
intercompany accounts and transactions in consolidation.

Fiscal Year Our fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in December
and, as a result, a 53rd week is added every five or six years. Fiscal
years 2002 and 2001 consisted of 52 weeks while fiscal year 2000
consisted of 53 weeks. The extra week in 2000 contributed
approximately $0.02 of additional diluted earnings per share to
our 2000 operating results.

Revenue Recognition We recognize revenue when our products are
delivered to customers. Sales terms do not allow a right of return
unless product freshness dating has expired. 

Sales Incentives We offer certain sales incentives to our customers,
which are accounted for as a reduction in our net revenues when
incurred. A number of these arrangements are based upon annual
and quarterly targets that generally do not exceed one year. Based
upon forecasted volume and other performance criteria, net 
revenues in our Consolidated Statements of Operations are
reduced by the expected amounts to be paid out to our customers. 

Advertising and Marketing Costs We are involved in a variety of
programs to promote our products. We include advertising and
marketing costs in selling, delivery and administrative expenses
and expense such costs in the fiscal year incurred. Advertising
and marketing costs were $441 million, $389 million and
$350 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, before 
bottler incentives received from PepsiCo and other brand owners.

Bottler Incentives PepsiCo and other brand owners, at their sole 
discretion, provide us with various forms of bottler incentives.
These incentives cover a variety of initiatives, including direct
marketplace support, capital equipment funding and advertising
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support. Based on the objective of the programs and initiatives,
we record bottler incentives as an adjustment to net revenues or as
a reduction of selling, delivery and administrative expenses.
Direct marketplace support represents PepsiCo’s and other brand
owners’ funding to assist us in offering sales and promotional 
discounts to retailers and is recorded as an adjustment to net 
revenues. Capital equipment funding is designed to help offset
the costs of purchasing and installing marketing equipment, such
as vending machines and glass door coolers at customer locations
and is recorded as a reduction of selling, delivery and administra-
tive expenses. Advertising support represents the cost of media
time, promotional materials, and other advertising and marketing
costs that are funded by PepsiCo and other brand owners and is
recorded as a reduction to advertising and marketing expenses
within selling, delivery and administrative expenses. In addition,
PepsiCo and other brand owners may share certain media costs
with us due to our joint objective of promoting their brands.
There are no conditions or other requirements that could result 
in a repayment of the bottler incentives received. Total bottler 
incentives received, including media costs shared by PepsiCo and
other brand owners were $604 million, $598 million and $566
million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Of these amounts,
we recorded $293 million in both 2002 and 2001 and $277 
million in 2000, in net revenues, and the remainder as a reduction
of selling, delivery and administrative expenses.

Shipping and Handling Costs We record the majority of our shipping
and handling costs within selling, delivery and administrative
expenses. Such costs totaled $1,116 million, $1,058 million and
$977 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Foreign Currency Gains and Losses We translate the balance sheets
of our foreign subsidiaries that do not operate in highly inflation-
ary economies at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet
date, while we translate the statements of operations at the 
average rates of exchange during the year. The resulting 
translation adjustments of our foreign subsidiaries are recorded
directly to accumulated other comprehensive loss. Foreign 
currency gains and losses reflect translation gains and losses 
arising from the remeasurement into U.S. dollars of the net 
monetary assets of businesses in highly inflationary countries and
transaction gains and losses. Turkey and Russia were considered
highly inflationary economies for accounting purposes in 2002.
Beginning in 2003, Russia will no longer be considered highly
inflationary, and will change its functional currency from the
U.S. dollar to the Russian ruble. We do not expect any material
impact on our consolidated financial statements as a result of
Russia’s change in functional currency in 2003. Turkey is
expected to remain highly inflationary for fiscal year 2003.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans We sponsor pension and
other postretirement plans in various forms covering substantially
all employees who meet eligibility requirements. We account for
our defined benefit pension plans and our postretirement benefit
plans using actuarial models required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting 
for Pensions,” and SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” 

The assets, liabilities and assumptions used to measure expense
for any fiscal year are determined as of September 30 of the 
preceding year (“measurement date”). The discount rate assump-
tion used in our pension and postretirement benefit plans’
accounting is based on current interest rates for high-quality,
long-term corporate debt as determined on each measurement
date. The expected return on plan assets is based on our 
long-term historical experience, our plan asset allocation and 
our expectations for long-term interest rates and market 
performance. In evaluating our rate of return on assets for a 
given fiscal year, we consider a15 to 20-year time horizon for our
pension investment portfolio. In addition, we look at the return
on asset assumptions used by other companies in our industry, 
as well as other large companies. Over the past three fiscal years,
the composition of our plan assets was approximately 70%–75%
equity investments and 25%–30% fixed income securities,
which primarily consist of U.S. government and corporate bonds.
Differences between actual and expected returns are generally
recognized in the net periodic pension calculation over five years.
To the extent the amount of all unrecognized gains and losses
exceeds 10% of the larger of the benefit obligation or plan assets,
such amount is amortized over the average remaining service life
of active participants. The rate of future compensation increases
is based upon our historical experience and management’s best
estimate regarding future expectations. We amortize prior service
costs on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service
period of employees expected to receive benefits.

For our postretirement plans that provide medical and life 
insurance benefits, we review external data and our historical
health care cost trends with our actuarial advisors to determine
the health care cost trend rates.

Income Taxes Our effective tax rate is based on our income, 
statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available to us
in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. The tax bases of
our assets and liabilities reflect our best estimate of the ultimate
outcome of our tax audits. Valuation allowances are established
where expected future taxable income does not support the
recognition of the related deferred tax asset.
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Earnings Per Share We compute basic earnings per share by 
dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share
reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercised and converted
into common stock that would then participate in net income.

Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents represent funds we have 
temporarily invested with original maturities not exceeding
three months.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We determine our allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the evaluation of the aging of our
trade receivable portfolio and a customer-by-customer analysis of
our high-risk customers. Our reserves contemplate our historical
loss rate on receivables, specific customer situations, and the 
economic environments in which we operate.

Inventories We value our inventories at the lower of cost computed
on the first-in, first-out method or net realizable value for the
majority of our locations. For our recent acquisitions in Mexico
and Turkey, we value inventories at the lower of cost computed on
the weighted-average cost method or net realizable value. 

Property, Plant and Equipment We state property, plant and equip-
ment (“PP&E”) at cost, except for PP&E that has been impaired,
for which we write down the carrying amount to estimated fair
market value, which then becomes the new cost basis.

Intangible Assets During 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” which requires that goodwill and intan-
gible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized,
but instead tested for impairment. Effective the first day of fiscal
year 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill and certain franchise
rights, but evaluate them for impairment annually. 

Our identifiable intangible assets principally arise from the 
allocation of the purchase price of businesses acquired, and 
consist primarily of franchise rights. Our franchise rights are
typically perpetual in duration, subject to compliance with 
the underlying franchise agreement. The value and life of our
franchise rights are directly associated with the underlying 
portfolio of brands that we are entitled to make, sell and 
distribute under applicable franchise agreements. In considering
whether franchise rights have an indefinite useful life, we 
consider the nature and terms of the underlying franchise 
agreements; our intent and ability to use the franchise rights; 
and the age and market position of the products within 

the franchise, as well as the historical and projected growth of
those products. We assign amounts to such identifiable intangi-
bles based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue
No. 02-07, “Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets,” we evaluate our franchise
rights with indefinite useful lives for impairment annually as asset
groups on a country-by-country basis (“asset groups”). We 
measure the fair value of these asset groups utilizing discounted
estimated future cash flows, including a terminal value, which
assumes the franchise rights will continue in perpetuity. Our
long-term terminal growth assumptions reflect our current 
long-term view of the marketplace. Our discount rate is based
upon our weighted-average cost of capital plus an additional risk
premium to reflect the risk and uncertainty inherent in separately
acquiring a franchise agreement between a willing buyer and a
willing seller. Each year we re-evaluate our assumptions in our
discounted cash flow model to address changes in our business and
marketplace conditions. Based upon our annual impairment
analysis, the estimated fair value of our franchise rights with
indefinite lives exceeded their carrying amounts in 2002. 

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we evaluate goodwill on a 
country-by-country basis (“reporting unit”) for impairment. We
evaluate each reporting unit for impairment based upon a two-
step approach. First, we compare the fair value of our reporting
unit with its carrying value. Second, if the carrying value of our
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we compare the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount to
measure the amount of impairment loss. In measuring the
implied fair value of goodwill, we would allocate the fair value of
the reporting unit to each of its assets and liabilities (including
any unrecognized intangible assets). Any excess of the fair value 
of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and
liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill.

We measure the fair value of a reporting unit as the discounted
estimated future cash flows, including a terminal value which
assumes the business continues in perpetuity, less its respective
minority interest and net debt (net of cash and cash equivalents).
Our long-term terminal growth assumptions reflect our current
long-term view of the marketplace. Our discount rate is based
upon our weighted-average cost of capital. Each year we re-evalu-
ate our assumptions in our discounted cash flow model to address
changes in our business and marketplace conditions. Based upon
our annual impairment analysis in the fourth quarter of 2002, the
estimated fair value of our reporting units exceeded their carrying
value and as result, we did not proceed to the second step of the
impairment test. 
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Other identifiable intangible assets that are subject to 
amortization are amortized straight line over the period in which 
we expect to receive economic benefit and are reviewed for impair-
ment when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of the asset may not be recoverable. Determining the
expected life of these intangible assets is based on an evaluation 
of a number of factors, including the competitive environment, 
market share and brand history. If the carrying value is not 
recoverable, impairment is measured as the amount by which the
carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. Fair value is 
generally estimated based on either appraised value or other 
valuation techniques.

Investment in Debt Defeasance Trust We have purchased 
$181 million in U.S. government securities and placed those 
securities into an irrevocable trust, for the sole purpose of funding
payments of principal and interest on the $160 million of 93⁄4%
senior notes maturing in March 2004, in order to defease their
respective covenants. These marketable securities have maturities
that coincide with the scheduled interest payments of the senior
notes and ultimate payment of principal. We have categorized
these marketable securities as held-to-maturity as we have the
positive intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity.
Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost. The
total amortized cost for these held-to-maturity securities at
December 28, 2002, was $182 million. The current portion of
these held-to-maturity securities is recorded in prepaid expenses
and other current assets in the amount of $12 million, and the
remaining long-term portion of $170 million is recorded in
investment in debt defeasance trust in our Consolidated 
Balance Sheets.

Casualty Insurance Costs We are self-insured for casualty costs in
the United States. Casualty insurance costs for our self-insurance 
program represent the ultimate net cost of all reported and 
estimated unreported losses incurred during the fiscal year. Our 
liability for casualty costs of $69 million as of December 28, 2002,
is estimated using individual case-based valuations and statistical
analyses and is based upon historical experience, actuarial 
assumptions and professional judgment. We do not discount 
loss expense reserves.

Minority Interest PBG and PepsiCo contributed bottling 
businesses and assets used in the bottling businesses to Bottling
Group, LLC, our principal operating subsidiary, in connection
with the formation of Bottling Group, LLC in February 1999. At
December 28, 2002, PBG owns 93.2% of Bottling Group, LLC
and PepsiCo owns the remaining 6.8%. Accordingly, the
Consolidated Financial Statements reflect PepsiCo’s share of the
consolidated net income of Bottling Group, LLC as minority

interest in our Consolidated Statements of Operations, and
PepsiCo’s share of consolidated net assets of Bottling Group, 
LLC as minority interest in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Treasury Stock We record the repurchase of shares of our common
stock at cost and classify these shares as treasury stock within 
shareholders’ equity. Repurchased shares are included in our 
authorized and issued shares but not included in our shares 
outstanding. We record shares reissued using an average cost.
Since the inception of our share repurchase program in October
1999, we have repurchased approximately 40 million shares and
have reissued approximately 10 million for stock option exercises. 

Financial Instruments and Risk Management We use derivative
instruments to hedge against the risk associated with the price of
commodities purchased and used in our business, interest rates on
outstanding debt and in 2002, certain currency exposures relating
to our acquisition of Pepsi-Gemex, S.A. de C.V. (“Gemex”), a
company we acquired in November 2002. Our use of derivative
instruments is limited to interest rate swaps, forward contracts,
futures and options on futures contracts. Our corporate policy 
prohibits the use of derivative instruments for trading or 
speculative purposes, and we have procedures in place to monitor
and control their use.

All derivative instruments are recorded at fair value as either
assets or liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Derivative
instruments are generally designated and accounted for as either a
hedge of a recognized asset or liability (“fair value hedge”) or a
hedge of a forecasted transaction (“cash flow hedge”). 

For a fair value hedge, both the effective and ineffective portions
of the change in fair value of the derivative instrument, along
with an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item for
fair value changes attributable to the hedged risk, are recognized
in earnings. For derivative instruments that hedge interest rate
risk, the fair value adjustments are recorded to interest expense,
net, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

For a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative instrument that are highly effective are
deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss until the 
underlying hedged item is recognized in earnings. The applicable
gain or loss is recognized in earnings immediately and is recorded
consistent with the expense classification of the underlying
hedged item. 

The ineffective portion of fair value changes on qualifying cash
flow hedges is recognized in earnings immediately and is recorded
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2002 2001 2000

Net Income 
Reported $ 428 $ 305 $ 229

Less: Total stock-based employee 
compensation expense determined 
under fair value based method for 
all awards, net of taxes (40) (36) (25)

Pro forma $ 388 $ 269 $204

Earnings per Share 
Basic – as reported $1.52 $1.07 $0.78
Diluted – as reported $1.46 $1.03 $0.77
Basic – pro forma $1.38 $0.94 $0.70
Diluted - pro forma $1.32 $0.91 $0.69

Pro forma compensation cost measured for stock options granted
to employees is amortized straight-line over the vesting period,
which is typically three years.

Commitments and Contingencies We are subject to various claims
and contingencies related to lawsuits, taxes, environmental and
other matters arising out of the normal course of business.
Liabilities related to commitments and contingencies are 
recognized when a loss is probable and reasonably estimable.

New Accounting Standards During 2001, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 141, “Business Combinations,” which requires that the 
purchase method of accounting be used for all business 
combinations initiated or completed after June 30, 2001, and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which
requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite 
useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for 
impairment. Effective the first day of fiscal year 2002, we no
longer amortize goodwill and certain franchise rights, but 
evaluate them for impairment annually. We have completed our
annual impairment review and have determined that our good-
will and indefinite-lived intangible assets are not impaired. The
following table provides pro forma disclosure of the elimination
of goodwill and certain franchise rights amortization in 2001 
and 2000, as if SFAS No. 142 had been adopted in 2000:

consistent with the expense classification of the underlying
hedged item. If a fair value or cash flow hedge were to cease to
qualify for hedge accounting or be terminated, it would continue
to be carried on the balance sheet at fair value until settled, but
hedge accounting would be discontinued prospectively. If a 
forecasted transaction were no longer probable of occurring,
amounts previously deferred in accumulated other comprehensive
loss would be recognized immediately in earnings. 

On occasion, we enter into derivative instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting. These instruments are reflected in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value with changes in 
fair value recognized in earnings. 

We also may enter into certain derivative instruments for which
hedge accounting is not required because it is entered into to 
offset changes in the fair value of an underlying transaction 
recognized in earnings (“natural hedge”). These instruments are
reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in earnings.

Stock-Based Employee Compensation We measure stock-based 
compensation expense using the intrinsic value method in 
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and 
its related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation expense
for stock option grants to our employees is measured as the excess
of the quoted market price of common stock at the grant date
over the amount the employee must pay for the stock. Our policy
is to grant stock options at fair value on the date of grant. 

As allowed by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” we have elected to
continue to apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting
described above, and have adopted the disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” If
we had measured compensation cost for the stock options granted
to our employees under the fair value-based method prescribed
by SFAS No. 123, net income would have been changed to the
pro forma amounts set forth below:
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recognition of income statements and classification of various
sales incentives. We adopted EITF Issue No. 01-09 at the 
beginning of fiscal 2002 and it did not have a material impact
on our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for 
Costs Associated with the Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS
No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. We do not anticipate that the adoption of
SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

During 2002 the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation–Transition and Disclosure,”
which amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
this statement requires SFAS No. 123 disclosure requirements in
both annual and interim financial statements. We will continue
to measure stock-based compensation expense in accordance
with APB Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and its related interpretations, and therefore we do
not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 148 will have a
material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During 2002, the EITF addressed various issues related to the
income statement classification of certain payments received by
a customer from a vendor. In November 2002, the EITF reached
a consensus on Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Reseller for
Cash Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including
a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products),” addressing the recognition
and income statement classification of various consideration
given by a vendor to a customer. Among its requirements, the
consensus requires that certain cash consideration received by a
customer from a vendor is presumed to be a reduction of the
price of the vendor’s products, and therefore should be character-
ized as a reduction of cost of sales when recognized in the 
customer’s income statement, unless certain criteria are met.
EITF Issue No. 02-16 will be effective beginning in our fiscal
year 2003. We currently classify bottler incentives received from
PepsiCo and other brand owners as adjustments to net revenues
and selling, delivery and administrative expenses. In accordance
with EITF Issue No. 02-16, we will classify certain bottler
incentives as a reduction of cost of sales beginning in 2003. 
We are currently assessing the transitional guidance released by
the EITF to determine the net impact to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

2002 2001 2000

Reported net income $ 428 $ 305 $ 229
Add back: Goodwill amortization, 

net of tax – 27 27
Add back: Franchise rights 

amortization, net of tax – 64 63

Adjusted net income $ 428 $ 396 $ 319

Reported earnings per 
common share – Basic $1.52 $1.07 $0.78

Add back: Goodwill amortization, 
net of tax – 0.09 0.09

Add back: Franchise rights 
amortization, net of tax – 0.23 0.22

Adjusted earnings per 
common share – Basic $1.52 $1.39 $1.09

Reported earnings per 
common share – Diluted $1.46 $1.03 $0.77

Add back: Goodwill 
amortization, net of tax – 0.09 0.09

Add back: Franchise rights 
amortization, net of tax – 0.22 0.21

Adjusted earnings per 
common share – Diluted $1.46 $1.34 $1.07

During 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting 
for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated
with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the 
associated asset retirement costs. It requires that we recognize
the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in
the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal year 2003.
We do not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will
have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting 
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS
No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for the impairment
of long-lived assets and broadens the presentation of discontinued
operations to include more disposal transactions. We adopted
SFAS No. 144 at the beginning of fiscal year 2002. The adoption
of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During 2001, the EITF issued EITF Issue No. 01-09,
“Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer
or Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” which addresses the 
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Note 5: Intangible Assets, net

2002 2001

Intangibles subject to amortization:
Gross carrying amount:

Franchise rights $ 20 $ 12
Other identifiable intangibles 24 39

44 51

Accumulated amortization:
Franchise rights (6) (2)
Other identifiable intangibles (9) (25)

(15) (27)

Intangibles subject to amortization 
(less accumulated amortization) 29 24

Intangibles not subject to amortization:
Carrying amount:

Franchise rights 3,424 2,577
Goodwill 1,192 1,046
Other identifiable intangibles 42 37

Intangibles not subject to amortization 4,658 3,660

Total Intangible Assets (less 
accumulated amortization) $4,687 $3,684

For intangible assets subject to amortization, we calculate 
amortization on a straight-line basis over the period we expect 
to receive economic benefit. Total amortization expense was
$8 million, $135 million and $131 million in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The weighted-average amortization period
for each class of intangible assets and their estimated aggregate
amortization expense expected to be recognized over the next
five years are as follows:

Weighted-

Average Estimated Aggregate Amortization 

Amortization Expense to be Incurred

Period 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Franchise rights 5 years $4 $4 $4 $2 $–
Other identifiable 

intangibles 7  years $4 $4 $3 $2 $1

Through our various current and prior year acquisitions we
accumulated $146 million of goodwill during 2002.

Note 3:  Inventories

2002 2001

Raw materials and supplies $162 $117
Finished goods 216 214

$378 $331

Note 4: Property, Plant and Equipment, net

2002 2001

Land $ 228 $ 145
Buildings and improvements 1,126 925
Manufacturing and distribution equipment 2,768 2,308
Marketing equipment 2,008 1,846
Other 154 121

6,284 5,345
Accumulated depreciation (2,976) (2,802)

$ 3,308 $ 2,543

We calculate depreciation on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20–33 years
Manufacturing equipment 15 years
Distribution equipment 2–10 years
Marketing equipment 3–7 years
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an effective interest rate of 7.0%), on March 8,1999, and they
are guaranteed by Bottling Group, LLC. 

The $1.0 billion of 45⁄8% senior notes (with an effective interest
rate of 4.6%) was issued on November 15, 2002, by our subsidiary
Bottling Group, LLC and will be guaranteed by PepsiCo in accor-
dance with the terms set forth in the related indenture. 

Each of the senior notes mentioned above has redemption 
features, covenants and will, among other things, limit our
ability and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to create or
assume liens, enter into sale and lease-back transactions, engage
in mergers or consolidations and transfer or lease all or 
substantially all of our assets. 

The $160 million of 9 3⁄4% senior notes were issued by Gemex.
These senior notes have an effective interest rate of 3.7% after a
fair value adjustment of $14 million resulting from our 
acquisition of Gemex. In December 2002, we purchased $181
million of U.S. government securities and placed those securities
into an irrevocable trust, for the sole purpose of funding 
payments of principal and interest on the $160 million of 9 3⁄4%
senior notes maturing in March 2004, in order to defease their
respective covenants. We estimate that the U.S. government
securities will be sufficient to satisfy all future principal and
interest requirements of the senior notes. See Note 2. 

We have a $500 million commercial paper program that is 
supported by two $250 million credit facilities. One of the
credit facilities expires in May 2003 and the other credit facility
expires in April 2004. There were no borrowings outstanding
under these credit facilities at December 28, 2002, or 
December 29, 2001.

We have available short-term bank credit lines of approximately
$167 million and $177 million at December 28, 2002, and
December 29, 2001, respectively. These lines were used to 
support the general operating needs of our businesses outside
the United States. The weighted-average interest rate for these
lines of credit outstanding at December 28, 2002, and
December 29, 2001, was 8.9% and 4.3%, respectively.

Amounts paid to third parties for interest were $196 million,
$191 million and $202 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, 
respectively. Total interest expense incurred during 2002, 2001
and 2000 was $200 million, $204 million and $208 million,
respectively. 

Note 6: Accounts Payable and 
Other Current Liabilities

2002 2001

Accounts payable $ 394 $ 362
Trade incentives 210 205
Accrued compensation and benefits 181 141
Accrued interest 81 71
Other accrued taxes 57 38
Other current liabilities 256 187

$1,179 $1,004

Note 7: Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt

2002 2001

Short-term borrowings
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 18 $ 3
Other short-term borrowings 51 74

$ 69 $ 77

Long-term debt
55⁄8% senior notes due 2009 $1,300 $1,300
53⁄8% senior notes due 2004 1,000 1,000
7% senior notes due 2029 1,000 1,000
45⁄8% senior notes due 2012 1,000 –
93⁄4% senior notes due 2004 160 –

Other (average rate 3.7%) 74 11

4,534 3,311
Add: SFAS No. 133 adjustment* 23 7

Fair value adjustment relating 
to purchase accounting 14 –

Less: Unamortized discount, net 30 30
Current maturities of long-term debt 18 3

$4,523 $3,285
*In accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 133, the portion of our fixed-rate

debt obligations that is hedged is reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as an

amount equal to the sum of the debt’s carrying value plus a SFAS No. 133 fair value

adjustment representing changes recorded in the fair value of the hedged debt 

obligations attributable to movements in market interest rates.

Maturities of long-term debt as of December 28, 2002, are 2003:
$18 million, 2004: $1,165 million, 2005: $5 million, 2006:
$3 million, 2007: $37 million and thereafter, $3,306 million.

The $1.3 billion of 55⁄8% senior notes (with an effective interest
rate of 5.6%) and the $1.0 billion of 53⁄8% senior notes (with an
effective interest rate of 4.5%) were issued on February 9, 1999,
by our subsidiary Bottling Group, LLC and are guaranteed by
PepsiCo. PBG issued the $1.0 billion of 7% senior notes (with

Annual Report 2002



46

Note 8: Commitments
We have noncancelable commitments under both capital and
long-term operating leases, which consist principally of 
buildings, office equipment and machinery. Capital and 
operating lease commitments expire at various dates through
2021. Most leases require payment of related executory costs,
which include property taxes, maintenance and insurance. 

Our future minimum commitments under noncancelable leases
are set forth below:

Leases

Capital Operating

2003 $1 $ 34
2004 1 25
2005 – 19
2006 – 15
2007 – 14
Later years 3 70

$5 $177

In addition, at December 28, 2002, we have outstanding letters 
of credit and surety bonds valued at $98 million, primarily to 
provide collateral for estimated self-insurance claims and other
insurance requirements. 

At December 28, 2002, the present value of minimum payments
under capital leases was $3 million, after deducting $2 million 
for imputed interest. Our rental expense was $62 million, $40
million and $42 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note 9: Financial Instruments and Risk Management
These Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the implemen-
tation of SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 138, on the
first day of fiscal year 2001. In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” This statement establishes accounting and reporting
standards for hedging activities and derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, which are collectively referred to as derivatives. It
requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets 
or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and measure those
instruments at fair value. In June 2000, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 138, amending the accounting and reporting 
standards of SFAS No. 133. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No.
133, there were no deferred gains or losses from our hedging
activities recorded in our Consolidated Financial Statements.
The adoption of these statements resulted in the recording of a
deferred gain in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, which was

recorded as an increase to current assets of $4 million and a 
reduction of other comprehensive loss of $4 million. Furthermore,
the adoption had no impact on our Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

As of December 28, 2002, our use of derivative instruments is
limited to interest rate swaps, forward contracts, futures and
options on futures contracts. Our corporate policy prohibits the
use of derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes,
and we have procedures in place to monitor and control their use.

Cash Flow Hedges We are subject to market risk with respect to
the cost of commodities because our ability to recover increased
costs through higher pricing may be limited by the competitive
environment in which we operate. We use future and option
contracts to hedge the risk of adverse movements in commodity
prices related to anticipated purchases of aluminum and fuel
used in our operations. These contracts, which generally range
from one to 12 months in duration, establish our commodity
purchase prices within defined ranges in an attempt to limit our
purchase price risk resulting from adverse commodity price
movements and are designated as and qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting treatment. 

The amount of deferred losses from our commodity hedging
that we recognized into cost of sales in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations was $22 million in 2002 and $4 
million for 2001. As a result of our commodity hedges, 
$16 million and $19 million of deferred losses (before taxes 
and minority interest) remained in accumulated other 
comprehensive loss in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, based 
on the commodity rates in effect on December 28, 2002, and
December 29, 2001, respectively. The adjustment to 
accumulated other comprehensive loss is reflected after income
taxes and minority interest of $7 million and $8 million in 2002
and 2001, respectively, in our Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. Assuming no change in the
commodity prices as measured on December 28, 2002, $13 
million of the deferred loss will be recognized in our cost of sales
over the next 12 months. The ineffective portion of the change
in fair value of these contracts was not material to our results of
operations in 2002 or 2001.

On November 15, 2002, Bottling Group, LLC issued a $1 bil-
lion 10-year bond with an interest rate of 4 5⁄8%. In anticipation
of the bond issuance, Bottling Group, LLC entered into several
treasury rate future contracts to hedge against adverse interest
rate changes. We recognized $8 million as a deferred gain
(before taxes and minority interest) reported in accumulated
other comprehensive loss resulting from these treasury rate 
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contracts. The adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive
income is reflected after minority interest and income taxes of
$3 million. These deferred gains are released to match the under-
lying interest expense on the debt. Deferred gains of $0.7 million
will be recognized in interest expense over the next 12 months. 

Fair Value Hedges We finance a portion of our operations through
fixed-rate debt instruments. We converted our entire $1.0 bil-
lion 5 3⁄8% senior notes and $300 million of our $1.3 billion
5 5⁄8% senior notes to floating rate debt through the use of 
interest rate swaps, with the objective of reducing our overall
borrowing costs. These interest rate swaps meet the criteria for
fair value hedge accounting and are 100% effective in eliminat-
ing the market rate risk inherent in our long-term debt.
Accordingly, any gain or loss associated with these swaps is
fully offset by the opposite market impact on the related debt.
The change in fair value of the interest rate swaps was a gain of
$16 million in 2002 and a gain of $7 million in 2001. The fair
value change was recorded in interest expense, net in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations and in prepaid expenses
and other current assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. An
offsetting adjustment was recorded in interest expense, net in
our Consolidated Statements of Operations and in long-term
debt in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, representing the
change in fair value of the related long-term debt. 

Unfunded Deferred Compensation Liability Our unfunded deferred
compensation liability is subject to changes in our stock price, 
as well as price changes in other equity and fixed income invest-
ments. Participating employees in our deferred compensation
program can elect to defer all or a portion of their compensation
to be paid out on a future date or dates. As part of the deferral
process, employees select from phantom investment options that
determine the earnings on the deferred compensation liability
and the amount that they will ultimately receive. Employee
investment elections include PBG stock and a variety of other
equity and fixed income investment options.

Since the plan is unfunded, employees’ deferred compensation
amounts are not directly invested in these investment vehicles.
Instead, we track the performance of each employee’s investment
selections and adjust his or her deferred compensation account
accordingly. The adjustments to the employees’ accounts increases
or decreases the deferred compensation liability reflected on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets, with an offsetting increase or
decrease to our selling, delivery and administrative expenses.

We use prepaid forward contracts to hedge the portion of our
deferred compensation liability that is based on our stock price.
At December 28, 2002, we had a prepaid forward contract for

638,000 shares at an exercise price of $28.50, which was
accounted for as a natural hedge. This contract requires cash 
settlement and has a fair value at December 28, 2002, of 
$16 million recorded in prepaid expenses and other current
assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair value of 
this contract changes based on the change in our stock price
compared with the contract exercise price. We recognized
$1 million in gains in 2002 and $2 million in gains in 2001,
resulting from the change in fair value of these prepaid forward
contracts. The earnings impact from these instruments is 
classified as selling, delivery and administrative expenses. 

Other Derivatives During 2002, we entered into option contracts
to mitigate certain foreign currency risks in anticipation of our
acquisition of Gemex. Although these instruments did not 
qualify for hedge accounting, they were deemed derivatives
since they contained a net settlement clause. These options
expired unexercised and the cost of these options of $7 million
has been recorded in other non-operating expenses, net in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities Financial assets with carrying
values approximating fair value include cash and cash equiva-
lents and accounts receivable. Financial liabilities with carrying
values approximating fair value include accounts payable and
other accrued liabilities and short-term debt. The carrying value
of these financial assets and liabilities approximates fair value
due to the short maturities and since interest rates approximate
current market rates for short-term debt.

Long-term debt at December 28, 2002, had a carrying value and
fair value of $4.5 billion and $4.9 billion, respectively, and at
December 29, 2001, had a carrying value and fair value of
$3.3 billion and $3.4 billion, respectively. The fair value is
based on interest rates that are currently available to us for
issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Note 10: Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Pension Benefits
Our U.S. employees participate in noncontributory defined 
benefit pension plans, which cover substantially all full-time
salaried employees, as well as most hourly employees. Benefits
generally are based on years of service and compensation, or
stated amounts for each year of service. All of our qualified plans
are funded and contributions are made in amounts not less than
minimum statutory funding requirements and not more than 
the maximum amount that can be deducted for U.S. income tax 
purposes. Our net pension expense for the defined benefit plans
for operations outside the U.S. was not significant.
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Our U.S. employees are also eligible to participate in our 401(k)
savings plans, which are voluntary defined contribution plans. 
We make matching contributions to the 401(k) savings plans on
behalf of participants eligible to receive such contributions. If a
participant has one or more but less than 10 years of eligible 
service, our match will equal $0.50 for each dollar the participant
elects to defer up to 4% of the participant’s pay. If the participant
has 10 or more years of eligible service, our match will equal $1.00
for each dollar the participant elects to defer up to 4% of the 
participant’s pay. 

Components of pension expense:

Pension

2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 28 $ 25 $ 24
Interest cost 56 50 49
Expected return on plan assets (66) (57) (53)
Amortization of prior 

service amendments 6 4 5
Special termination benefits 1 – –

Net pension expense for the 
defined benefit plan $ 25 $ 22 $ 25

Cost of defined contribution plans $ 18 $ 17 $ 15

Total pension expense recognized 
in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations $ 43 $ 39 $ 40

Postretirement Benefits
Our postretirement plans provide medical and life insurance 
benefits principally to U.S. retirees and their dependents.
Employees are eligible for benefits if they meet age and service
requirements and qualify for retirement benefits. The plans are
not funded and since 1993 have included retiree cost sharing. 

Components of postretirement benefits expense: 

Postretirement

2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 3 $ 3 $ 3
Interest cost 17 16 14
Amortization of net loss 2 1 1
Amortization of prior 

service amendments (6) (6) (6)

Net postretirement benefits expense 
recognized in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations $16 $14 $12

Changes in the benefit obligation:

Pension Postretirement

2002 2001 2002 2001

Obligation at 
beginning of year $760 $664 $228 $212

Service cost 28 25 3 3
Interest cost 56 50 17 16
Plan amendments 22 10 – –
Actuarial loss 127 48 55 14
Benefit payments (41) (37) (17) (17)
Special termination benefits 1 – – –

Obligation at end of year $953 $760 $286 $228

Changes in the fair value of assets:

Pension Postretirement

2002 2001 2002 2001

Fair value at 
beginning of year $ 578 $ 665 $ – $ –

Actual return on 
plan assets (61) (120) – –

Asset transfers 11 – – –
Employer contributions 51 70 17 17
Benefit payments (41) (37) (17) (17)

Fair value at end of year $ 538 $ 578 $ – $ –

Selected information for the plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets:

Pension Postretirement

2002 2001 2002 2001

Projected benefit obligation $953 $760 $286 $228
Accumulated benefit 

obligation 843 690 286 228
Fair value of plan assets* 663 604 – –

*Includes fourth quarter employer contributions.
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Funded status recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Pension Postretirement

2002 2001 2002 2001

Funded status at end of year $(415) $(182) $(286) $(228)
Unrecognized prior 

service cost 41 36 (9) (16)
Unrecognized loss 407 153 110 57
Unrecognized 

transition asset – (1) – – 
Fourth quarter 

employer contribution 125 26 6 5

Net amounts recognized $ 158 $ 32 $(179) $(182)

Net amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Pension Postretirement

2002 2001 2002 2001

Other liabilities $(196) $(101) $(179) $(182)
Intangible assets 42 37 – – 
Accumulated other 

comprehensive loss 312 96 – – 

Net amounts recognized $ 158 $ 32 $(179) $(182)

At December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001, the accumulated
benefit obligation of certain PBG pension plans exceeded the fair
market value of the plan assets resulting in the recognition of the
unfunded liability as a minimum balance sheet liability. As a
result of this additional liability, our intangible asset increased by
$5 million to $42 million in 2002, which equals the amount of
unrecognized prior service cost in our plans. The remainder of the
liability that exceeded the unrecognized prior service cost was 
recognized as an increase to accumulated other comprehensive loss
of $216 million and $96 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively,
before taxes and minority interest. The adjustment to accumu-
lated other comprehensive loss is reflected after minority interest
of $15 million and $7 million, and deferred income taxes of $78
million and $34 million, in 2002 and 2001, respectively, in our
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.

Assumptions
The weighted-average assumptions used to compute the above
information are set forth below:

Pension

2002 2001 2000

Discount rate for benefit obligation 6.8% 7.5% 7.8%
Expected return on plan assets(1) 9.5% 9.5% 9.5%
Rate of compensation increase 4.3% 4.3% 4.6%

(1) Expected return on plan assets is presented after administration expenses.

Postretirement

2002 2001 2000

Discount rate for benefit obligation 6.8% 7.5% 7.8%

We evaluate these assumptions with our actuarial advisors on an
annual basis and we believe they are within accepted industry
ranges, although an increase or decrease in the assumptions or
economic events outside our control could have a direct impact
on reported net earnings. 

Funding and Plan Assets
The pension plan assets are principally invested in stocks and
bonds. None of the assets are invested directly into PBG,
PepsiCo or any bottling affiliates of PepsiCo, although it is 
possible that insignificant indirect investments exist through
our broad market indices. Our contributions are made in 
accordance with applicable tax regulations that provide for 
current tax deductions for our contributions and for taxation to
the employee of plan benefits when the benefits are received. 
We do not fund our pension plan and postretirement plans when
our contributions would not be deductible and when benefits
would be taxable to the employee before receipt. Of the total
pension liabilities at year end 2002, $52 million relates to 
plans not funded due to these unfavorable tax consequences. 

Health Care Cost Trend Rates
We have assumed an average increase of 12.0% in 2003 in the
cost of postretirement medical benefits for employees who retired
before cost sharing was introduced. This average increase is then
projected to decline gradually to 5.0% in 2013 and thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have an impact on the
amounts reported for postretirement medical plans. A one-
percentage point change in assumed health care costs would 
have the following effects:
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Stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 28, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Options in millions Weighted-Average

Remaining

Contractual Life Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Range of Exercise Price Options In Years Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

$ 9.38–$11.49 8.9 6.99 $ 9.39 7.0 $10.38
$11.50–$15.88 13.2 6.06 $11.63 9.6 $11.61
$15.89–$22.50 9.1 8.00 $20.49 3.2 $20.04
$22.51–$29.25 6.2 9.00 $25.34 0.1 $25.16

37.4 7.24 $15.53 19.9 $12.59

1% 1%

Increase Decrease

Effect on total fiscal year 2002 service and 
interest cost components $ – $ –

Effect on the fiscal year 2002 accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation $10 $(8)

Note 11: Employee Stock Option Plans
Under our long-term incentive plan, stock options are issued to
middle and senior management employees and vary according 
to salary and level within PBG. Except as noted below, options
granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 had exercise prices ranging
from $23.25 per share to $29.25 per share, $18.88 per share to
$22.50 per share, and $9.38 per share to $15.88 per share,
respectively, expire in 10 years and generally become exercisable
25% after one year, an additional 25% after two years, and the
remainder after three years. 

In 2001, two additional option grants were made to certain senior
management employees. One grant had an exercise price of
$19.50 per share, expires in 10 years and became exercisable on the
grant date. The other grant had an exercise price of $22.50 per
share, expires in 10 years and becomes exercisable in 5 years.

The following table summarizes option activity during 2002:

Weighted-Average 

options in millions Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 39.7 $13.20
Granted 6.4 25.32
Exercised (8.1) 11.63
Forfeited (0.6) 16.89

Outstanding at end of year 37.4 $15.53

Exercisable at end of year 19.9 $12.59

Weighted-average fair value of options 
granted during the year $10.89

The following table summarizes option activity during 2001:

Weighted-Average 

options in millions Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 33.2 $10.75
Granted 10.2 20.47
Exercised (1.8) 10.84
Forfeited (1.9) 12.01

Outstanding at end of year 39.7 $13.20

Exercisable at end of year 6.6 $13.38

Weighted-average fair value of options 
granted during the year $ 8.55

The following table summarizes option activity during 2000:

Weighted-Average 

options in millions Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 22.4 $11.49 
Granted 13.2 9.57
Exercised (0.2) 10.53
Forfeited (2.2) 11.20

Outstanding at end of year 33.2 $10.75

Exercisable at end of year 1.8 $11.11 

Weighted-average fair value of options 
granted during the year $ 4.68

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Tabular dollars in millions, except per share data
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The fair value of PBG stock options used to compute pro forma
net income disclosures was estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on the following
weighted-average assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Risk-free interest rate                                4.5% 4.6%     6.7%
Expected life 6 years 6 years 7 years
Expected volatility 37% 35% 35%
Expected dividend yield 0.16% 0.20% 0.43%

Note 12: Income Taxes
The details of our income tax provision are set forth below:

2002 2001 2000

Current: 
Federal $ 61 $ 93 $107
Foreign 12 5 1
State 17 15 27

90 113 135

Deferred: 
Federal 115 43 7
Foreign 2 (1) – 
State 14 6 (7)

131 48 – 

221 161 135
Rate change benefit – (25) – 

$221 $136 $135

Our 2001 income tax provision includes a nonrecurring 
reduction in income tax expense of $25 million due to enacted
tax rate changes in Canada during 2001.

Our U.S. and foreign income before income taxes is set forth below:

2002 2001 2000

U.S. $573 $375 $318
Foreign 76 66 46

$649 $441 $364

Our reconciliation of income taxes calculated at the U.S. federal
statutory rate to our provision for income taxes is set forth below:

2002 2001 2000

Income taxes computed at the U.S. 
federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income tax, net of 
federal tax benefit 2.8 3.1 3.2

Impact of foreign results (6.1) (9.0) (7.5)
Goodwill and other 

nondeductible expenses 1.0 3.9 5.1
Other, net 1.3 3.5 1.2

34.0 36.5 37.0
Rate change benefit – (5.7) – 

Total effective income tax rate 34.0% 30.8% 37.0%

The details of our 2002 and 2001 deferred tax liabilities (assets)
are set forth below:

2002 2001

Intangible assets and property, 
plant and equipment $1,424 $1,094

Other 94 109

Gross deferred tax liabilities 1,518 1,203

Net operating loss carryforwards (142) (121)
Employee benefit obligations (191) (141)
Bad debts (22) (13)
Various liabilities and other (106) (72)

Gross deferred tax assets (461) (347)
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 147 122

Net deferred tax assets (314) (225)

Net deferred tax liability $1,204 $ 978

Consolidated Balance Sheets Classification
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ (61) $ (43)
Deferred income taxes 1,265 1,021

$ 1,204 $ 978

We have net operating loss carryforwards totaling $443 million
at December 28, 2002, which are available to reduce future
taxes in the U.S., Spain, Greece, Russia, Turkey and Mexico. 
Of these carryforwards, $14 million expire in 2003 and $429
million expire at various times between 2004 and 2022. We
have established a full valuation allowance for the net operating
loss carryforwards attributable to our operations in Spain,
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Greece, Russia, Turkey and Mexico based upon our projection
that it is more likely than not that the benefit of these losses will
not be realized. In addition, at December 28, 2002, we have tax
credit carryforwards in the U.S. of $7 million with an indefinite
carryforward period and in Mexico of $13 million, which expire
at various times between 2006 and 2012.

Our valuation allowances, which reduce deferred tax assets to an
amount that will more likely than not be realized, have
increased by $25 million in 2002 and decreased by $26 million
in 2001. The increase in 2002 was mainly due to our business
acquisitions in Turkey and Mexico. 

Deferred taxes are not recognized for temporary differences related
to investments in foreign subsidiaries that are essentially perma-
nent in duration. Determination of the amount of unrecognized
deferred taxes related to these investments is not practicable.

Income taxes receivable were $42 million and $15 million at
December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001, respectively. Such
amounts are recorded within prepaid expenses and other current
assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts paid to 
taxing authorities and related parties for income taxes were
$49 million, $101 million and $147 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. 

Under our tax separation agreement with PepsiCo, PepsiCo 
maintains full control and absolute discretion for any combined 
or consolidated tax filings for tax periods ending on or before our
initial public offering that occurred in March 1999. PepsiCo has
contractually agreed to act in good faith with respect to all tax
audit matters affecting us. In accordance with the tax separation
agreement, we will share on a pro rata basis any risk or upside
resulting from the settlement of tax matters affecting us for 
these periods.

Note 13: Geographic Data
We operate in one industry, carbonated soft drinks and other
ready-to-drink beverages. We conduct business in 41 states and
the District of Columbia in the United States. Outside the U.S.,
we conduct business in Canada, Spain, Russia, Greece, Turkey
and Mexico.

Net Revenues

2002 2001 2000

U.S. $7,572 $7,197 $6,830
Mexico 164 – –
Other countries 1,480 1,246 1,152

$9,216 $8,443 $7,982

Long-Lived Assets

2002 2001 2000

U.S. $5,577 $5,395 $5,192
Mexico 1,586 – –
Other countries 1,127 914 960 

$8,290 $6,309 $6,152

Note 14: Relationship with PepsiCo
PepsiCo is considered a related party due to the nature of our
franchisee relationship and its ownership interest in our 
company. Approximately 90% of PBG’s 2002 volume was
derived from the sale of Pepsi-Cola beverages. At December 28,
2002, PepsiCo owned approximately 37.8% of our outstanding
common stock and 100% of our outstanding class B common
stock, together representing approximately 42.9% of the voting
power of all classes of our voting stock. In addition, PepsiCo
owns 6.8% of the equity of Bottling Group, LLC, our principal
operating subsidiary. We fully consolidate the results of Bottling
Group, LLC and present PepsiCo’s share as minority interest in
our Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The most significant agreements that govern our relationship
with PepsiCo consist of:

(1) The master bottling agreement for cola beverages bearing 
the “Pepsi-Cola” and “Pepsi” trademark in the United States; 
master bottling agreement and distribution agreements 
for non-cola products in the United States, including
Mountain Dew; and a master fountain syrup agreement in
the United States; 

(2) Agreements similar to the master bottling agreement and
the non-cola agreements for each country, including Canada,
Spain, Russia, Greece, Turkey and Mexico, as well as a
fountain syrup agreement similar to the master syrup 
agreement for Canada;

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Tabular dollars in millions, except per share data
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(3) A shared services agreement whereby PepsiCo provides us or we
provide PepsiCo with certain support, including information
technology maintenance, procurement of raw materials, shared
space, employee benefits, credit and collection, international
tax and accounting services. The amounts paid or received
under this contract are equal to the actual costs incurred by the
company providing the service. Through 2001, a PepsiCo
affiliate provided casualty insurance to us; and

(4) Transition agreements that provide certain indemnities to the
parties, and provide for the allocation of tax and other assets,
liabilities, and obligations arising from periods prior to the
initial public offering. Under our tax separation agreement,
PepsiCo maintains full control and absolute discretion for
any combined or consolidated tax filings for tax periods
ended on or before the initial public offering. PepsiCo has
contractually agreed to act in good faith with respect to all
tax audit matters affecting us. In addition, PepsiCo has
agreed to use its best efforts to settle all joint interests in any
common audit issue on a basis consistent with prior practice.

Bottler Incentives and Other Arrangements We share a business
objective with PepsiCo of increasing the availability and 
consumption of Pepsi-Cola beverages. Accordingly, PepsiCo, at
its discretion, provides us with various forms of bottler incen-
tives to promote its beverages. These incentives cover a variety
of initiatives, including direct marketplace support, capital
equipment funding, and advertising support. Based on the
objective of the programs and initiatives, we record bottler
incentives as an adjustment to net revenues or as a reduction of
selling, delivery and administrative expenses. Direct market-
place support represents PepsiCo’s funding to assist us in 
offering sales and promotional discounts to retailers and is
recorded as an adjustment to net revenues. Capital equipment
funding is designed to help offset the costs of purchasing and
installing marketing equipment, such as vending machines and
glass door coolers at customer locations and is recorded as a
reduction of selling, delivery and administrative expenses.
Advertising support represents the cost of media time, promo-
tional materials, and other advertising and marketing costs that
are funded by PepsiCo and is recorded as a reduction to 
advertising and marketing expenses within selling, delivery
and administrative expenses. In addition, PepsiCo may share
certain media costs with us due to our joint objective of
promoting PepsiCo brands. There are no conditions or other
requirements that could result in a repayment of the bottler
incentives received. Bottler incentives received from PepsiCo,
including media costs shared by PepsiCo, were $560 million,

$554 million and $524 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Of these amounts, we recorded $257 million,
$262 million and $244 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, in net revenues, and the remainder as a reduction
of selling, delivery and administrative expenses.

Purchases of Concentrate and Finished Product We purchase concen-
trate from PepsiCo, which is the critical flavor ingredient used
in the production of carbonated soft drinks and other ready-to-
drink beverages. PepsiCo determines the price of concentrate
annually at its discretion. We also pay a royalty fee to PepsiCo
for the Aquafina trademark. Amounts paid or payable to
PepsiCo and its affiliates for concentrate and royalty fees were
$1,699 million, $1,584 million and $1,507 million in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. 

We also produce or distribute other products and purchase 
finished goods and concentrate through various arrangements
with PepsiCo or PepsiCo joint ventures. During 2002, 2001
and 2000, total amounts paid or payable to PepsiCo or PepsiCo
joint ventures for these transactions were $464 million, $375
million and $155 million, respectively. 

We provide manufacturing services to PepsiCo and PepsiCo
affiliates in connection with the production of certain finished
beverage products. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, total amounts
paid or payable by PepsiCo for these transactions were 
$10 million, $32 million and $36 million, respectively. 

Fountain Service Fee We manufacture and distribute fountain
products and provide fountain equipment service to PepsiCo
customers in some territories in accordance with the Pepsi 
beverage agreements. Amounts received from PepsiCo for these
transactions are offset by the cost to provide these services and
are reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in
selling, delivery and administrative expenses. Net amounts 
paid or payable by PepsiCo to us for these services were 
approximately $200 million, $185 million and $189 million, 
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

Other Transactions Prior to 2002, Hillbrook Insurance
Company, Inc., a subsidiary of PepsiCo, provided insurance
and risk management services to us pursuant to a contractual
agreement. Total premiums paid to Hillbrook Insurance
Company, Inc. during 2001 and 2000 were $58 million and
$62 million, respectively. 



54

We provide PepsiCo and PepsiCo affiliates or PepsiCo provides
us various services pursuant to a shared services agreement and
other arrangements, including information technology 
maintenance, procurement of raw materials, shared space,
employee benefits, credit and collection, international tax and
accounting services. Total net expenses incurred were 
approximately $57 million, $133 million and $117 million 
during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

We purchase snack food products from Frito-Lay, Inc., a 
subsidiary of PepsiCo, for sale and distribution in all of Russia
except Moscow. Amounts paid or payable to PepsiCo and its
affiliates for snack food products were $44 million, $27 million
and $24 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Consolidated Statements of Operations include the 
following income (expense) amounts as a result of transactions
with PepsiCo and its affiliates:

2002 2001 2000

Net revenues:
Bottler incentives $ 257 $ 262 $ 244

Cost of sales:
Purchases of concentrate and 

finished products, and 
Aquafina royalty fees $(2,163) $(1,959) $(1,662)

Manufacturing and distribution
service reimbursements 10 32 36

$(2,153) $(1,927) $(1,626)

Selling, delivery and 
administrative expenses:

Bottler incentives $ 303 $ 292 $ 280
Fountain service fee 200 185 189
Frito-Lay purchases (44) (27) (24)
Insurance costs – (58) (62)
Shared services (57) (133) (117)

$ 402 $ 259 $ 266

We are not required to pay any minimum fees to PepsiCo, 
nor are we obligated to PepsiCo under any minimum 
purchase requirements. 

As part of our acquisition in Turkey (see Note 16), PBG paid
PepsiCo $8 million for its share of Fruko Mesrubat Sanayii A.S.
and related entities. In addition, we sold certain brands to
PepsiCo from the net assets acquired for $16 million.

As part of our acquisition of Gemex in Mexico (see Note 16),
PepsiCo received $297 million for the tender of its shares for its
34.4% ownership in the outstanding capital stock of Gemex. 
In addition, PepsiCo made a payment to us for $17 million, to
facilitate the purchase and ensure a smooth ownership transition
of Gemex.

We paid PepsiCo $10 million and $9 million during 2002 and
2001, respectively, for distribution rights relating to the SoBe
brand in certain PBG-owned territories in the U.S. and Canada.

In connection with PBG’s acquisition of Pepsi-Cola Bottling of
Northern California in 2001, PBG paid $10 million to PepsiCo
for its equity interest in Northern California. 

With respect to PepsiCo’s 6.8% ownership in Bottling Group,
LLC, our principal operating subsidiary, Bottling Group, LLC
will distribute pro rata to PepsiCo and us sufficient cash such
that aggregate cash distributed to us will enable us to pay our
income taxes and interest on our $1 billion 7% senior notes due
2029. PepsiCo’s pro rata cash distribution during 2002 from
Bottling Group, LLC was $11 million.

The $1.3 billion of 55⁄8% senior notes and the $1.0 billion of 53⁄8%
senior notes issued on February 9,1999, by our subsidiary
Bottling Group, LLC are guaranteed by PepsiCo. In addition, the
$1.0 billion of 45⁄8% senior notes issued on November 15, 2002,
also by Bottling Group, LLC, will be guaranteed by PepsiCo in
accordance with the terms set forth in the related indenture.

Amounts payable to PepsiCo and its affiliates were $26 million
and $17 million at December 28, 2002, and December 29, 2001,
respectively. Such amounts are recorded within accounts payable
and other current liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Tabular dollars in millions, except per share data
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Note 15: Contingencies
We are involved in a lawsuit with current and former employees
concerning wage and hour issues in New Jersey. We believe that
the ultimate resolution to this matter will not have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition or
liquidity. Subsequent to year end we have resolved this matter,
see Note 19. 

We are subject to various claims and contingencies related 
to lawsuits, taxes, environmental and other matters arising out
of the normal course of business. We believe that the ultimate
liability arising from such claims or contingencies, if any, in
excess of amounts already recognized is not likely to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial 
condition or liquidity.

Note 16: Acquisitions
During 2002, we acquired the operations and exclusive right to
manufacture, sell and distribute Pepsi-Cola beverages from 
several PepsiCo franchise bottlers. The following acquisitions
occurred for an aggregate amount of $936 million in cash and
$375 million of assumed debt:

• Fruko Mesrubat Sanayii A.S. and related entities of Turkey
in March. 

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company of Macon, Inc. of Georgia
in March.

• Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company of Aroostook, Inc. of Presque
Isle, Maine in June. 

• Seaman’s Beverages Limited of the Canadian province of
Prince Edward Island in July.

• Pepsi-Gemex, S.A. de C.V. of Mexico in November.

• Kitchener Beverages Limited of Ontario, Canada
in December.

The largest of our six acquisitions was Gemex where we
acquired all of their outstanding capital stock. Our total cost for
the purchase of Gemex was a net cash payment of $871 million
and assumed debt of approximately $305 million. Gemex 
produces, sells and distributes a variety of soft drink products
under the Pepsi-Cola, Pepsi Light, Pepsi Max, Pepsi Limon,
Mirinda, 7 UP, Diet 7 UP, KAS, Mountain Dew, Power Punch
and Manzanita Sol trademarks under exclusive franchise and
bottling arrangements with PepsiCo and certain affiliates of
PepsiCo. Gemex owns, produces, sells and distributes purified
and mineral water in Mexico under the trademarks Electropura
and Garci Crespo and has rights to produce, sell and distribute
soft drink products of other companies in Mexico.

Our U.S. and Canadian acquisitions were made to enable us to
provide better service to our large retail customers. We expect
these acquisitions to reduce costs through economies of scale.
The Mexican and Turkish acquisitions were made to allow us to
increase our markets outside the United States. 

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with our
acquisitions, net of cash acquired:

Useful life

(years) Gemex Other Total

Assets
Current assets $  101 $ 33 $ 134
Fixed assets 5–33 505 85 590
Intangible assets:

Non-compete agreements 
subject to amortization 3–5 – 4 4

Franchise rights subject 
to amortization 5 – 8 8

Franchise rights not subject 
to amortization 808 35 843

Goodwill (non-tax deductible) 126 20 146
Other assets 15 2 17

Total Assets $1,555 $187 $1,742

Liabilities
Accounts payable and other 

current liabilities 141 43 184
Short-term borrowings 5 50 55
Long-term debt 300 20 320
Other liabilities 238 16 254

Total Liabilities $ 684 $129 $ 813

Net assets acquired $ 871 $ 58 $ 929

In addition to the net assets acquired above, we also incurred
non-capitalizable costs associated with the acquisition of Gemex.
As discussed in Note 9, we entered into option contracts to 
mitigate certain foreign currency risks in anticipation of our
acquisition. These options expired unexercised and the cash flow
of $7 million associated with these options is included in acquisi-
tions of bottlers in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 

The allocation of the purchase price for Gemex is preliminary,
pending final valuations on certain assets. The final allocations
of the purchase price will be determined based on the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date
of acquisition. 
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Non-compete agreements and franchise rights subject to
amortization acquired during 2002 have a weighted-average
amortization period of three and five years, respectively.

The following unaudited pro forma operating information 
summarizes our consolidated results of operations as if the Gemex
acquisition had occurred on the first day of fiscal year 2001.

2002 2001

Net revenues $10,297 $9,617
Income before income taxes $ 678 $ 468
Net income $ 448 $ 324
Earnings per share

Basic $ 1.59 $ 1.14
Diluted $ 1.53 $ 1.09

The operating results of each of our acquisitions are included in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements from its
respective date of purchase.

During 2001, PBG acquired the operations and exclusive right
to manufacture, sell and distribute Pepsi-Cola beverages from
two PepsiCo franchise bottlers. In May and August of 2001, we
acquired Pepsi-Cola Bottling of Northern California, and Pepsi-
Cola Elmira Bottling Co. Inc., respectively, for an aggregate
purchase price of $125 million of cash and assumed debt. These
acquisitions were accounted for by the purchase method and
were made to enable us to provide better service to our large
retail customers, as well as reduce costs through economies of
scale. The aggregate purchase price exceeded the fair value of net
tangible assets acquired, including the resulting tax effect, by
approximately $108 million in 2001. 

Note 17: Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
The balances related to each component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Currency translation adjustment $(285) $(303) $(254)
Cash flow hedge adjustment(a) (5) (12) –
Minimum pension 

liability adjustment(b) (178) (55) –

Accumulated other 
comprehensive loss $(468) $(370) $(254)

(a) Net of minority interest and taxes of $4 million in 2002, $8 million in 2001

and $0 in 2000.

(b) Net of minority interest and taxes of $134 million in 2002, $41 million in 2001

and $0 in 2000.

Note 18: Computation of Basic and Diluted
Earnings Per Share

shares in thousands 2002 2001 2000

Number of shares on which 
basic earnings per share are based:
Weighted-average outstanding 

during period 281,674 286,024 294,294
Add – Incremental shares under 

stock compensation plans 11,116 9,655 4,376

Number of shares on which diluted 
earnings per share are based 292,790 295,679 298,670

Basic and diluted net 
income applicable to 
common shareholders $ 428 $ 305 $ 229 

Basic earnings per share $1.52 $1.07 $0.78
Diluted earnings per share $1.46 $1.03 $0.77

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could
occur if the stock options from our stock compensation plans were
exercised and converted into common stock that would then 
participate in net income. The calculation of earnings per share
above reflects the two-for-one stock split as discussed in Note 1. 

Shares outstanding reflect the effect of our share repurchase 
program, which began in October 1999. In addition, in
November 2001, we executed a two-for-one stock split in the
form of a 100% stock dividend, doubling our weighted-average
shares outstanding. As a result of the stock split in 2001, the
amount of shares authorized by the Board of Directors to 
be repurchased totals 50 million shares, of which we have 
repurchased approximately 40 million shares and have reissued
approximately 10 million shares for stock option exercises since
the inception of our share repurchase program.

Note 19: Subsequent Events (unaudited)
During the first quarter of 2003, we acquired a Pepsi-Cola 
bottler based in Buffalo, New York, for a purchase price of
approximately $75 million.

In the first quarter of 2003 we settled a lawsuit with the New
Jersey State Department of Labor and with current and former
employees concerning overtime wage issues. The amount of this
settlement was approximately $28 million, which was fully 
provided for in our litigation reserves as of December 28, 2002,
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Tabular dollars in millions, except per share data
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Note 20: Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth

2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

Net revenues $1,772 $2,209 $2,455 $2,780 $9,216

Gross profit 830 1,024 1,118 1,243 4,215

Operating income 135 271 338 154 898

Net income 54 139 178 57 428

First Second Third Fourth

2001 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

Net revenues $1,647 $2,060 $2,274 $2,462 $8,443
Gross profit 765 952 1,052 1,094 3,863
Operating income 90 217 285 84 676
Net income(1) 26 116 150 13 305

(1) During 2001, the Canadian Government passed laws reducing federal and certain provincial corporate income tax rates. These rate changes resulted in one-time gains of

$16 million and $9 million in the second and third quarters of 2001, respectively.
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders
The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. as of December 28, 2002 and
December 29, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for
each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended
December 28, 2002. These consolidated financial statements 
are the responsibility of management of The Pepsi Bottling
Group, Inc. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. as of December 28,
2002 and December 29, 2001, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year
period ended December 28, 2002, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the company adopted FASB 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” as of December 30, 2001.

KPMG LLP
New York, New York
January 28, 2003

Independent Auditors’ Report

To Our Shareholders:

We are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair 
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, related
notes and other information included in this annual report. 
The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and include certain amounts based
upon our estimates and assumptions, as required. Other 
financial information presented in the annual report is derived
from the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We maintain a system of internal control over financial 
reporting, designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the
reliability of the Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as 
to safeguard assets from unauthorized use or disposition. 
The system is supported by formal policies and procedures, 
including an active Code of Conduct program intended to
ensure employees adhere to the highest standards of personal
and professional integrity. Our internal audit function monitors
and reports on the adequacy of and compliance with the internal
control system, and appropriate actions are taken to address 
significant control deficiencies and other opportunities for
improving the system as they are identified.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited and
reported on by our independent auditors, KPMG LLP, who were
given free access to all financial records and related data, including
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees
of the Board. We believe that management representations made
to the independent auditors were valid and appropriate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is 
composed solely of outside directors, provides oversight to our
financial reporting process and our controls to safeguard assets
through periodic meetings with our independent auditors, 
internal auditors and management. Both our independent 
auditors and internal auditors have free access to the 
Audit Committee.

Although no cost-effective internal control system will preclude all
errors and irregularities, we believe our controls as of December 28,
2002, provide reasonable assurance that our assets are safeguarded.

Alfred H. Drewes Andrea L. Forster
Senior Vice President Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer and Controller

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements
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in millions, except per share data
Fiscal years ended 2002 2001 2000(1) 1999 1998

Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues $ 9,216 $8,443 $7,982 $7,505 $7,041
Cost of sales 5,001 4,580 4,405 4,296 4,181
Gross profit 4,215 3,863 3,577 3,209 2,860
Selling, delivery and administrative expenses 3,317 3,187 2,987 2,813 2,583
Unusual impairment and other charges and credits(2) – – – (16) 222
Operating income 898 676 590 412 55
Interest expense, net 191 194 192 202 221
Other non-operating expenses, net 7 – 1 1 26
Minority interest 51 41 33 21 –
Income (loss) before income taxes 649 441 364 188 (192)
Income tax expense (benefit)(3)(4) 221 136 135 70 (46)
Net income (loss) $ 428 $ 305 $ 229 $ 118 $ (146)

Per Share Data: (5)

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 1.52 $ 1.07 $ 0.78 $ 0.46 $ (1.33)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 1.46 $ 1.03 $ 0.77 $ 0.46 $ (1.33)
Cash dividend per share $ 0.04 $ 0.04 $ 0.04 $ 0.03 $ –
Weighted-average basic shares outstanding 282 286 294 257 110
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding 293 296 299 257 110

Other Financial Data:
Cash provided by operations $ 1,014 $ 882 $ 779 $ 699 $ 601
Capital expenditures $ (623) $  (593) $  (515) $  (560) $  (507)

Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Total assets $10,027 $7,857 $7,736 $7,624 $7,322
Long-term debt:

Allocation of PepsiCo long-term debt $ – $ – $ – $ – $3,300
Due to third parties 4,523 3,285 3,271 3,268 61

Total long-term debt $ 4,523 $3,285 $3,271 $3,268 $3,361
Minority interest $ 348 $  319 $ 306 $ 278 $ –
Advances from PepsiCo $ – $ – $  – $        – $1,605
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $    (468) $ (370) $ (254) $ (223) $  (238)
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) $ 1,824 $1,601 $1,646 $1,563 $  (238)
(1) Our fiscal year 2000 results were impacted by the inclusion of an extra week in our fiscal year. The extra week increased net income by $7 million, or $0.02 per share.

(2) Unusual impairment and other charges and credits comprise the following:

• $45 million non-cash compensation charge in the second quarter of 1999. 

• $53 million vacation accrual reversal in the fourth quarter of 1999.

• $8 million restructuring reserve reversal in the fourth quarter of 1999.

• $222 million charge related to the restructuring of our Russian bottling operations and the separation of Pepsi-Cola North America’s concentrate and bottling organizations

in the fourth quarter of 1998. 

(3) 1998 includes a $46 million income tax benefit in the fourth quarter for the settlement of a disputed claim with the Internal Revenue Service relating to the deductibility of the

amortization of acquired franchise rights. 

(4) Fiscal year 2001 includes Canada tax law change benefits of $25 million.

(5) Reflects the 2001 two-for-one stock split.

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc. Annual Report 2002

Selected Financial and Operating Data



Corporate Headquarters
The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.
1Pepsi Way
Somers, New York 10589
914.767.6000

Transfer Agent
For services regarding your account such as change of address,
replacement of lost stock certificates or dividend checks, direct
deposit of dividends, or change in registered ownership, contact:

The Bank of New York
Shareholder Services Dept.
P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, New York 10286-1258

Telephone: 800.432.0140
E-mail: shareowner-svcs@bankofny.com
Website: http://stock.bankofny.com
Or
The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.
Shareholder Relations Coordinator
1 Pepsi Way
Somers, New York 10589
Telephone: 914.767.6339

In all correspondence or telephone inquiries, please 
mention PBG, your name as printed on your stock 
certificate, your Social Security number, your address 
and telephone number.

Direct Purchase and Sales Plan
The BuyDIRECT Plan, administered by The Bank of 
New York, provides existing shareholders and interested 
first-time investors a direct, convenient and affordable 
alternative for buying and selling PBG shares. Contact The
Bank of New York for an enrollment form and brochure that
describes the plan fully. For BuyDIRECT Plan enrollment 
and other shareholder inquiries:

The Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.
c/o The Bank of New York
P.O. Box 11019
New York, NY 10286-1019
800.432.0140

Stock Exchange Listing
Common shares (symbol: PBG) are traded on the New York
Stock Exchange.

Independent Public Accountants
KPMG LLP
345 Park Avenue
New York, New York 10154

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m.,
Wednesday, May 28, 2003, at PBG headquarters in Somers,
New York.

Investor Relations
PBG’s 2003 quarterly releases are expected to be issued the
weeks of April 21, July 7 and September 29, 2003, and
January 26, 2004.

Earnings and other financial results, corporate news and other
company information are available on PBG’s website:
http://www.pbg.com

Investors desiring further information about PBG should 
contact the Investor Relations department at corporate 
headquarters at 914.767.6339.

Institutional investors should contact MaryWinn Settino 
at 914.767.7216.

This publication contains many of the valuable trademarks
owned and used by PepsiCo, Inc. and its subsidiaries and 
affiliates in the United States and internationally.

Printed on recycled paper.

Shareholder Information
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Thank You, Craig Weatherup

fter nearly three 

decades in the 

Pepsi system and countless

contributions to its growth

and success, Craig Weatherup

officially retired as PBG’s

Chairman in January 2003.

He remains a member of

PBG’s Board of Directors.

Craig’s career is highlighted

by a number of achievements

that transformed Pepsi and

the beverage industry. He

was largely responsible for

reshaping Pepsi-Cola and

positioning the company for 

a period of unprecedented

growth. He shepherded 

the introduction of a host 

of innovative products,

including alternative bever-

ages and bottled water, 

which expanded Pepsi’s 

portfolio, and strategically

positioned Pepsi as a “Total

Beverage Company” well

ahead of the competition.

During Craig’s tenure as

President and CEO of Pepsi-

Cola North America in the

early 1990s, the company’s

sales nearly doubled and

profits almost tripled. After

briefly serving as President of

PepsiCo in 1996, he returned

to Pepsi-Cola Company to

lead the successful turn-

around of its international

operations.

In 1998, Craig led the creation

of The Pepsi Bottling Group,

and launched the company

with a clear, focused mission:

“We Sell Soda.” He led the

company’s Initial Public

Offering in March of 1999 –

which at the time was the

fifth largest in the history 

of the New York Stock

Exchange.

Beyond his great business

instincts, knowledge and

experience, Craig is known

for his warmth, sincerity and

integrity – qualities that

established him as a visionary

in the industry, one of the

most trusted voices for the

business community, and a

true advocate for PBG’s

front-line work force.

We are grateful to Craig for

his leadership in launching

PBG and establishing the

company’s strong foundation,

and for his dedication to 

our ongoing success.
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